AGREEMENTS

between

CNY Centro Inc., Centro of Oswego Inc., Centro of Cayuga Inc.

Amalgamated Transit Union Division 580, Syracuse NY



Effective: April 1, 2024

- March 31, 2027

TABLE OF CONTENTS

AGREEMENT		4
ARTICLE I		5
UNION RECOGNITION	5	
ARTICLE II		6
GRIEVANCES	6	
ARTICLE III		9
CHARGE	9	
ARTICLE IV		14
OFFICIALS FOR EMPLOYER AND UNION	14	
ARTICLE V		15
CARRIER DOME WORK	15	
ARTICLE VI		16
EMPLOYEE'S RECORDS	16	
ARTICLE VII		16
HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT	16	
ARTICLE VIII		17
WAGES - COST OF LIVING FORMULA - PAY DAY	17	
ARTICLE IX		19
VACATIONS - ALL EMPLOYEES	19	
ARTICLE X		24
HOLIDAYS	24	
ARTICLE XI		25
GROUP TERM LIFE INSURANCE, DISABILITY, GROUP HEAD	LTH, DENTAL, VISION	25
ARTICLE XII		32
PENSION	32	
ARTICLE XIII		37
SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR OPERATORS (ALL)	37	
ARTICLE XIV		50
SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR REGULAR OPERATORS	50	
ARTICLE XV		54
SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR EXTRA OPERATORS	54	
ARTICLE XVI		57
SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR MECHANICAL AND MAINTENAL	NCE DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES	57

ARTICLE XVII		69
CENTRO OF CAYUGA, INC. & CENTRO OF OSWEGO,	INC. EXCEPTIONS	69
ARTICLE XVIII		74
LEAVES OF ABSENCE	74	
ARTICLE XIX		79
COMPANY PASSES	79	
ARTICLE XX		79
EMPLOYEE TRANSFER	79	
ARTICLE XXI		80
UNION OFFICIALS ON EMPLOYER PROPERTY	80	
ARTICLE XXII		80
BULLETINS	80	
ARTICLE XXIII		80
REDUCING FORCE (LAY-OFF)	80	
ARTICLE XXIV		80
AGENCY SHOP PROVISIONS	80	
ARTICLE XXV		80
PART-TIME OPERATORS	80	
ARTICLE XXVI		85
EMPLOYEE CONDUCT	85	
ARTICLE XXVII		85
PROBATIONARY PERIOD	85	
ARTICLE XXVIII		86
GOOD WILL	86	
ARTICLE XXIX		86
TERMINATING CLAUSE	86	
ARTICLE XXX		86
TEMPORARY FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES	86	
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING		88
SIGNATURE PAGE OF CONTRACTUAL AGR	FEMENT	91

AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT entered on this April 26, 2024, by and between CNY Centro, Inc.; Centro of Oswego, Inc.; and Centro of Cayuga, Inc.; hereinafter referred to as the Employer; and the Amalgamated Transit Union, Local Division 580; hereinafter referred to as the Union. The term of this Agreement will be effective for three years, from April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2027.

It is agreed by and between the parties that any provision of this Agreement requiring legislative action to permit its implementation by amendment of law or by providing the additional funds therefore, shall not become effective until the appropriate legislative body has given approval.

The term "employees" as it appears in this contract shall mean members of the Bargaining Unit or members of the Union, whichever is applicable.

Conformity to law: This Agreement and its component provisions are subordinate to any present or future Federal or New York laws and regulations. If a Federal or New York law or regulations, or final decisions of any Federal or New York court of administrative agency, affects any provision of this Agreement, each such provision will be deemed amended to the extent necessary to comply with such law, regulations or decisions, but otherwise this Agreement will not be affected.

NON-DISCRIMINATION: Both parties agree not to discriminate against any employees or applicant for employment because of race, creed, sex, color, or national origin, and will take affirmative action to ensure that they are afforded equal employment opportunities without discrimination because of race, creed, sex, color or national origin. Such action shall be taken with reference to, but not be limited to: recruitment, employment, job assignment, promotion, upgrading, demotion, transfer, layoff, or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation and selection of training or retraining including apprenticeship and on-the-job training.

ARTICLE I

UNION RECOGNITION

- 1.01 It is agreed and understood that the CEO, or their representative, will meet with the representatives of the Union on working conditions, wages, pensions, and welfare.
- 1.02 Union representatives called away from their regular work by the employer for the purpose of transacting Union business shall be paid by the Employer at their regular hourly rates for their time necessarily lost from work in the transaction of such business. This will not apply to time lost during regular contract negotiations.
- 1.03 The Employer agrees to deduct Union dues, assessments and initiation fees when the Union furnishes proper authorization forms.

The Employer shall deduct back dues of an amount and schedule of such provided by the union. The Union will supply the Employer with the signed deduction form from the employee.

The Employer agrees to deduct weekly, from employees who have so voluntarily authorized it, contributions to the ATU Committee on Political Education (COPE) and to forward such contributions, along with a list of contributors to COPE, to the Union within 30 days of the deductions.

- 1.04 The Employer agrees to send monthly, to the Financial Secretary of the Union, a list of all new employees in the bargaining unit including names, addresses, phone numbers, dates of birth, and dates qualified. The Employer also agrees to provide social security numbers for union employees as requested by the Business Agent.
- 1.05 When an employee is taken out of service, the Business Agent shall be notified within a twenty-four (24) hour period by email.
- 1.06 The Employer shall notify the Business Agent in writing upon termination of any of its employees. This notice shall state the reason for termination. If the employee resigned, a copy of the resignation letter will be forwarded to the Union.

ARTICLE II

GRIEVANCES

2.01 Purpose

- (a) The Employer agrees to meet with the proper accredited officers and committees of the Union on all grievances that may arise.
- (b) It is the intention of the Employer and the Union that all grievances be resolved informally or at the earliest possible stage of this grievance procedure. Informal settlements at any stage of the procedure prior to arbitration shall bind the immediate parties to the settlement but shall not be a precedent in a future grievance proceeding.
- (c) The Union agrees to meet with proper accredited officers and committees of the Employer on all grievances that may arise.

2.02 Definitions

- (a) A "grievance" is any alleged violation of this Agreement by either party or any dispute with respect to its meaning or application.
- (b) A "grievant" is an employee or group of employees, the Union, or the Employer who submits a grievance.
- (c) A "business day" for the purposes of this grievance procedure is any day Monday through Friday. The six (6) observed National Holidays will not be counted as a business day: New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, and Christmas Day.

2.03 Submission

- (a) Before submission of a written grievance, the grievant will attempt to resolve the grievance informally with the departmental director in the case of an employee or group of employees or the Union, or with the case of an employee or group of employees or the Union in the case of the Employer, within 15 business days of the date of occurrence of the event over which the grievance arises.
- (b) If one of the two parties is not available for this meeting, an appointment for this meeting will be made within the stated 15 business days.
- 2.04 If this informal settlement fails, a grievance shall be submitted by the grievant in writing within the aforementioned 15 business days after the grievant receives actual or constructive notice of the event which the grievance arises, or consistent with 2.03(a) above.

Grievances shall be submitted only on a form approved by the Union and the Company. Any grievance not so submitted shall not be considered valid.

- 2.05 The grievance shall set forth:
 - (a) The name of the grievant.
 - (b) The provision(s) of the Agreement deemed breached if it exists in the contract and if it doesn't exist, a written reason for the dispute.
 - (c) The time when, and the place where the alleged events or conditions constituting the grievance took place.
 - (d) If known, the identity of the person responsible for causing such event or condition.
 - (e) A general description of the grievance.
 - (f) The remedy sought by the grievant.
- 2.06 A grievance which is not submitted within the time period referred to in paragraph 2.04 above shall be waived by the grievant and may not thereafter be the subject of a grievance or the grievance procedure.
- 2.07 The Vice President of the department or Employee/Union Business Agent who receives the first submission of a written grievance shall answer, in writing, to each such grievance within 10 business days after its receipt.
- 2.08 (a) If the grievance is not settled by the written answer of the Vice President of the department or the Employee/Union Business Agent, in 2.07 above, the grievant may, within 10 business days of receipt of the written answer in 2.07 above, resubmit the grievance to the Vice President of Human Resources, in the case of an employee or group of employees or Union, or to the Union Business Agent, in the case of the Employer, for a meeting to discuss the grievance.
 - (1) The Vice President of Human Resources, or their designee, or the Union Business Agent, shall meet with the grievant within 10 business days of receipt of the request.
 - (2) At the meeting, the grievant in the case of an employee or group of employees, may also be accompanied by a Union representative or, in the case of the Employer, or Union, the Vice President of Human Resources, or their designee, shall attend.
 - (3) If the grievance is not settled by mutual agreement at the meeting, the Vice President of Human Resources, or their designee, in the case of an employee or group of employees, or the Union representative, in the case of the Employer, shall give their answer orally at that time to be confirmed in writing upon request; or, in the alternative, may submit their written answer within 10 business days after completion of the meeting.
 - (b) If the grievance is not settled by the answer of the Vice President of Human Resources, or their designee, or the Union representative, in 2.08(a)(3), the grievant, through the Union, may take the matter to arbitration in accordance with this paragraph. The Union or Employer shall service within 20 business days of the receipt of the answer in 2.08(a)(3) or the expiration of 20 business days in the absence of

such an answer in 2.08(a)(3), a notice to proceed to arbitration to be sent to the CEO, or their designee, or Union Business Agent respectively, which notice shall contain its designated Arbitrator within 10 business days of receipt of such notice. The two designated Arbitrators shall meet on two days for the purpose of attempting to resolve the grievance, such meetings to be completed within 10 business days of the appointment of the last designated Arbitrator. The parties may have up to three additional meetings upon mutual consent. If the two Arbitrators are unable to resolve the grievance during these sessions and a panel of Arbitrators are unable to resolve the grievance during these sessions and a panel of Arbitrators has not been previously requested from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service, such request for a panel shall be made.

- (1) The Arbitrators shall have no power or authority to add to, subtract from, modify, change, or alter any of the provisions of this Agreement.
- (2) The decision of the neutral Arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties.
- (3) The expense of the Arbitration Board shall be borne as follows: The Company and Union shall each bear the expense of its own Arbitrator and equally share the fees and expenses as are necessary to successfully carry forth the arbitration.
- (4) Notwithstanding the above, the Union or Employer may request a panel of Arbitrators from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service at the completion, of 2.08(a)(3). The parties, absent agreement, shall submit their Arbitrators' selections to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service within 10 business days of receipt of the aforementioned Arbitration panel from Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. The request for a panel shall be initiated by the aggrieved party not later than sixty (60) business days following the original issuance of notice to proceed to arbitration.

2.09 Withdrawal

Nothing in this grievance procedure shall prevent a grievant on their own volition from withdrawing a grievance at any stage of the procedure up to and including the completion of 2.07 and the selection by the parties of their designated Arbitrators in 2.08.

- 2.10 All written grievances, answers and responses between the parties in this procedure shall be in reasonable compliance with this grievance procedure.
- 2.11 Lockout, Strikes, Etc.

The Employer and the Union agree that upon conforming to this grievance procedure and upon conforming to the terms of this Agreement and/or any decision rendered by an Arbitration Board in accordance herewith, there shall be no lockout on the part of the Employer, and the Union agrees that there shall be no strikes, walkouts, or stoppage or slowdown of work.

2.12 Upon request of the employee, or the Union on behalf of the employee, that is related to an existing grievance, the employer will furnish the Employee and the Union copies of said employee's service and medical records.

ARTICLE III

CHARGE

3.01 Definition of a Charge

For the purpose of this agreement, a charge shall be defined as a statement of alleged rule violation, preventable accident or other act of misconduct put forth by the Employer against an employee or employees. Such an allegation could result in a disciplinary action, including but not limited to: instruction, warning, suspension, time served at the bottom of the list, probation, discharge and/or other monetary penalty.

- 3.02 (a) All charges must be filed within fifteen (15) business days from the date the Employer became aware of the cause that precipitated that charge(s). In cases where the Company can substantiate the need for additional time to investigate a particular charge, the Employer may file said charge within thirty (30) business days. Business days shall mean Monday through Friday except legal holidays. Substantiation for anything beyond 15 business days shall be provided to the Union in writing within two (2) business days of the charge having been made.
 - (b) A charge shall be considered filed when notice is given by the Employer in any one of the following ways:
 - (1) An employee receives verbal or written notice to see the official in charge regarding a charge. Verbal notices shall be followed up by written notices within 5 business days.
 - (2) The Union receives verbal or written notice that an employee is to see the official in charge regarding a charge. Verbal notice shall be followed up by written notice on the next business day.
 - (c) Any charge which is not filed in accordance with the time periods in (a) above will be waived by the Employer and may not thereafter be subject to disciplinary action. It is understood that any time limits may be waived by mutual agreement.
 - (d) In cases where an employee is summoned to answer a charge, a copy denoting the nature of the charge shall be forwarded to the Union. Said copy shall be forwarded to the Union prior to any meetings regarding alleged charge(s) that may involve time off or removal from service.

3.03 Summons of an Employee to Answer a Charge

- (a) An official in charge shall normally be available to meet with members of the bargaining unit who have been summoned to answer a charge between the hours of 8:15 A.M. and 11:30 A.M. and between 1:30 P.M. to 4:30 P.M. Monday through Friday (except holidays).
- (b) When summoned for a meeting regarding a possible charge, an employee shall meet with the official in charge as soon as possible, not to exceed a period of five (5) working days from the issuance of written notice.
 - (1) If the employee summoned for a meeting regarding a possible charge and it is determined that the wrong employee was summoned, said employee will be compensated ten (10) minutes pay at the straight time rate.

- (c) No employee will be called to answer charges on their day off unless mutually agreed upon by the employee, the Employer, and the Union, with no compensation to the employee being involved.
- (d) Vacation days, floating holidays, book days, or any other days of excused absence shall not be counted toward the five working day period in (b) above.
- (e) in the event an employee has made every reasonable effort to comply with (b) above, during which time period the official in charge has been unavailable, the employee may log their name in a log book to be provided by the Employer.

3.04 Suspension/Removal From Service:

- (a) In the event of a serious or repeated rule violation, and a substantiated investigation of same, an employee may be suspended for a period not to exceed two (2) business days (Monday through Friday). No further discipline or suspension will be imposed upon the employee until a hearing has been held between the employee, the Employer, and a Union Representation.
- (b) In the event of serious or repeated accident, an employee may be withheld from service while an investigation is completed. Such investigation shall be completed within a reasonable time.

3.05 Hearings Between Employee/Employer/Union

- (a) Prior to a hearing with the Employer, the employee will be made aware of the date and the nature of the alleged violation. Prior to any meeting regarding alleged charge(s) that may involve time off or removal from service, a copy of said charge(s) shall be forwarded to the Union.
 - (1) The employee will then be advised of their right to Union representation and asked if they request that a Union official be present. The Company document relative to such hearing will reflect this fact.
 - (2) At the conclusion of any hearing in which disciplinary action is imposed, the employee will sign that part of the Personnel Report which indicates whether a Union official was present and will sign the appropriate line indicating receipt of a copy of the report.
- (b) An employee may, after hearing the charge, request adjournment of two (2) business days for the purpose of obtaining Union representation. This period may be extended by mutual agreement between the Employer and the Union.
- (c) At least twenty-four (24) hours prior to any hearings between the Employer and the employee, the outcome of which may result in termination, the Union will be given a copy of all pertinent evidence that the Employer intends to use at the hearing. Upon review of said evidence, the Union may request postponement of the hearing to prepare a defense, provided such an interval is of reasonable length.
- (d) An employee involved in a preventable accident will be required to appear before the official in charge, consistent with the provisions in Article 3.03. If the employee so desires, they will be represented at the hearing by a Union representative. After the

hearing, the employee will receive a written statement regarding the preventability of the accident.

(1) If the employee disagrees with the determination of preventability, they will be informed of their right to appeal and will be given an Accident Appeal form upon request.

3.06 Accident Appeals Committee

The Accident Appeals Committee is made up of three (3) representatives, one (1) from the Employer, one (1) from the Union Executive Board, and one (1) impartial member who is mutually agreed upon and is not affiliated with either the Employer or the Union. The Chairperson of the committee is one of the Employer representatives, and the sole purpose of the chairperson's position is to schedule appeal times and provide documents relative to each appeal.

Decisions made to determine if an accident is preventable or non-preventable are final and cannot be grieved by either party.

- (a) At Accident/Safety Review Board Committee hearings, a driver may request to have present a Union representative to help him or her present information relative to the accident in question. The process to be followed during meetings of the Accident/Safety Review Board is as follows:
 - (1) Call to order by the chairperson.
 - (2) Committee discussion of the appeals to be heard that day. (a copy of all reports are sent to the impartial member ahead of time so to allow them the opportunity to look them over prior to the meeting).
 - (3) Interview individual operators appealing the initial decision of their accident being preventable.
 - (4) Dismiss the operator. Then another brief discussion is held before a vote is taken for final decision on the accident. (appeals are normally scheduled every fifteen minutes, so each operator is allowed no more than ten minutes to describe what occurred the day of their accident).
 - (5) Vote by secret ballet to determine outcome of the appeal. (A Union committee member will then advise the operators what the determination was after the meeting is over).

3.07 Discipline:

- (a) No disciplinary action shall be rendered, nor will charges be included in the employee's personnel file and/or record without a substantiated investigation.
- (b) For the purpose of imposing discipline or termination, review of the employee's record shall not exceed the past fifteen (15) months of work, unless mutually agreed upon, or unless this is not consistent with statutory laws.
- (c) The employee will be notified of the number of days they are to receive as discipline. The following working day shall be the day on which the employee begins their penalty at the bottom of the list of their suspension as a result of discipline. Days of discipline may be shifted with mutual consent of both parties. Operators serving time

- on the bottom of the extra list shall not be required to report more than twice each day, and shall receive their guarantee for the day.
- (d) Bus operators receiving one or more days of discipline will have the choice of serving a suspension or time on the bottom of the list, except as follows.
- (e) When a bus operator is disciplined (suspension or day on the bottom) more than once in a twelve (12) month period, the employer shall have the choice of giving the employee suspension or time on the bottom.
- (f) The Employer reserves the right to discipline and/or terminate for excessive absenteeism. It is understood that this is subject to the grievance procedure.

Unexcused absences (an absence that was not prescheduled or authorized in advance by the employee's supervisor) will count each day as a single occurrence. If you are absent for two days or more, a doctor's note must be provided to count as a single absence.

Effective upon signing of this agreement, the disciplinary code of the Company's Policy on Attendance is amended to prescribe termination of employment following Nine (9) instances of absenteeism in a twelve (12) month period. For purposes of absentee control, all partial days of absence will be counted as one-half (1/2) day in determining the employee's absence record.

(1) Individual absences as a result of a work-related injury/illness would not be counted if the injury/illness occurred within a eighteen (18) month period prior to the date of the individual absence. Workers Compensation form C-8 will be used to determine date of illness or injury.

It is understood that any individual absence as a result of a work-related injury/illness would be counted if the injury/illness occurred more than a eighteen (18) month period prior to the individual absence. Workers Compensation form C-8 will be used to determine date of illness or injury.

- (g) When an employee's fifteen (15) month general record and/or general performance is not satisfactory to the Employer and the employee is entering a possible probationary period, the details or the case will be reviewed with the Union before disciplinary action is taken.
- (h) If an employee is suspended, and through subsequent investigation and/or hearings conducted by the Employer is found to be not guilty of the charge, the employee shall be reinstated without loss of benefits or seniority to their former position and paid for all time lost.
- (i) Anonymous complaints or reports shall not be entered in any Employee record, nor will anonymous complaints be considered in disciplinary action; however, it is understood an employee may be required to see the official in charge with respect to such complaints, or reports.
- (j) Phone calls not followed up by a substantiation of the caller's identity and charge will not form the sole basis for disciplinary action.

Company policy will be that a bus operator will not be terminated solely for having less than 6 miss-outs/late shows in a 15 month period.

It is understood that if a bus operator's total employment record indicates other types of rule violations in addition to miss-outs/late shows, termination may occur if an employee has less than 6 miss-outs/late shows.

3.08 Bus Operator Cell Phone Policy

(a) Operators may have cell phones with them on the bus (In Silent Mode Only). However, the cell phones <u>cannot be on their person</u> (Pockets, Carrying case, etc.). The cell phones need to be in their Company issued driver's bag/briefcase, purse or other area not directly associated with the operator.

Cellphones may be used at the end of line providing the operator has two (2) minutes or greater layover time until their inbound trip starts. The bus must be secured, and the operator must be out of their seat. If you do not have sufficient layover time as described above or your layover time is lost due to running late, you must leave the end of line on time or as soon as you arrive if you are running late. You must be aware of your surroundings such as customers boarding, disembarking or any concerns customers may have. The operator cannot stop the bus while in service including bathroom breaks (10/100) to use a cellphone except noted below. Cellphones may not be used at the Transit Hub at any time while in service. Downtime (parked and not in service) during Carrier Dome events and Downtown Service as well as hold time on the Extra list, operators may use their cell phone.

CAB — Cellphones may only be used if there is adequate time during the service day to stop safely and without service interruption. The bus must be secured, and the operator must be out of their seat. Cellphones cannot be used while waiting at a customer pick-up or drop-off.

Operators may use their cell phone in an emergency to contact Dispatch regarding work related issues if the radio system is not working or if they need to leave the bus for safety reason. The bus must be stopped in a safe place and secured before using cell phone.

If a violation occurs according to the rules above, this will result in a (D) violation for discipline:

1st Offense: Written Warning 2nd Offense: 1 - 3 Day Suspension 3rd Offense: 3 - 5 Day Suspension

4th Offense: Termination

(b) Operators cannot have their cellphone on their person while seated in the driver's seat while in service. Operators may not use their cell phone (phone, texting, internet), Smartwatches, Blue Tooth headsets or other virtual devices at any time for personal use while they are in service to include but not limited to report time, revenue service, dead heading, operating special events and downtown service. If an operator violates this rule, the following discipline will occur:

1st Offense: 5 Day suspension

2nd Offense: Termination

(c) If a bus operator is involved in an accident while using their cell phone, the following discipline code will be applied:

1st Offense: Termination

A bus camera will be positioned to view the driver's area and used to in accordance with the current Camera Policy to help identify and validate cell phone violations and other work rule violations.

- 3.09 Maintenance Cell Phone Policy
 - (a) Maintenance Employees will no longer be able to carry their personal cell phone with them at any time (on their person) while on duty, cell phones must be left in your toolbox, personal vehicle, locker or mailbox. Maintenance Employees may not use their cell phones (phone, texting, Internet), Smart Watches, Bluetooth headsets, or other virtual devices at any time for personal reasons while they are working except when using media (music) in conjunction with a wireless speaker. Cell phones can be used on scheduled breaks and at lunch/dinner breaks.

If a violation occurs according to the rules above, this will result in a (D) violation for discipline:

1st Offense: Written Warning
 2nd Offense: 1 - 3 Day suspension
 3rd Offense: 3 - 5 Day suspension

4th Offense: Termination

(b) If it is determined that the maintenance employee was using a cell phone (phone, texting, internet), Smartwatches, Blue Tooth headsets, other virtual devices at any time for personal use while the bus is in motion or operating a bus, the following progressive discipline in 3.08(b) will be applied.

1st Offense: 5 Day suspension 2nd Offense: Termination

(c) If a maintenance employee is involved in an accident while using their cell phone, the following discipline code 3.08(c) will be applied.

1st Offense: Termination

ARTICLE IV

OFFICIALS FOR EMPLOYER AND UNION

- 4.01 (a) All employees who are appointed to non-bargaining positions shall be allowed upon separation from such positions to take their previous job classification provided such separation occurs within 60 days.
 - (b) Employees in the Operations Department, while working in temporary or part-time official positions with the Employer, will not be able to use vacations and floating holidays that were bid on through the bargaining unit selection process. While working in such a temporary position, the employee's vacations and floating holidays may be taken in accordance with management vacation and floating holiday schedules, subject to availability.

- 4.02 Employees appointed to any office in the Union, whereby their duties take them from their work with the Employer, shall be allowed upon separation from such office to take their former position with the Employer with full Union rights and Company benefits.
- 4.03 The right to return to previous jobs as set out in 4.01 and 4.02 above applies only to employees who are qualified to perform those jobs and who have not been separated because of misconduct.
- 4.04 In the event an employee returning to the former position does not qualify because of changes in the type of equipment, the employee shall be afforded adequate time to requalify, for which the rate of said position will be paid.
- 4.05 However, in the event members of the Union are appointed to positions with the Employer which would be considered "Managerial or Confidential" positions under Section 214 of the Public Employees' Fair Employment Act, the Union members shall immediately, upon appointment to one of the above mentioned positions, surrender all Union rights and benefits. The Employer will provide a list of "Managerial or Confidential" positions to the Union, and changes thereof.
- 4.06 (a) Supervisory personnel will not be permitted to work in a job covered by this agreement unless mutually agreed upon by the Employer and the Union or in a justifiable emergency situation.
 - (b) It is understood that all available employees will be used before a supervisory employee is used.
 - (c) The Employer agrees to immediately notify the Union in these emergency situations and relieve the supervisory employee as soon as possible with a member of the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE V

CARRIER DOME WORK

5.01 Bus operators working on the Carrier Dome Shuttle will be paid overtime for all time actually driving and straight time for all waiting time. In addition, operators will be supplied an entry pass to S.U. sponsored football and basketball games. It is understood that the Company will attempt to secure passes for drivers for other events. These passes are not to be sold or given away.

ARTICLE VI

EMPLOYEE'S RECORDS

6.01 Employee Records:

- (a) The record maintained by the Employer for each member of the bargaining unit shall contain but not limited to the following:
 - (1) All charges brought by the Employer against the employee, including the date of occurrence and a description of the alleged violation.
 - (2) The written defense, written statement, or oral statement that the employee may wish to make in their defense of a charge.
 - (3) The disposition of all charges, including discipline, appeals, and grievances.
- (b) The record will show whether or not an accident is preventable. A copy of this will be given to the employee and the Union. If representatives of the Union or the employee do not agree with the decision of the Employer, the accident preventability may be forwarded to the Accident Appeals Committee for review. (Refer to section 3.06)
- (c) By appointment, the Employer will permit employees to review their employment records. A Union representative may attend if requested.
- 6.02 Notification to Employee and Union:
 - (a) The Employer agrees to notify the employee and the Union in writing of the placing of anything "for" or "against" an employee in the service record. The Company will provide a form to convey this information.
 - (b) In the event the Employer imposes discipline which would include time on the bottom, suspension, probation, or termination the Union thereafter will be given written or oral notice of such action prior to any discipline being rendered.

ARTICLE VII

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

7.01 Employees of the Union summoned to the Human Resources Management Department of the Employer or as a witness in a lawsuit to which the Employer is a party shall be paid for the time consumed or, if taken from their regular work and not restored to their work shall receive their regular day's pay. If an employee is summoned on their day off to appear in a lawsuit to which the Employer is a party, they will be paid at the time and one-half rate for an eight (8) hour day.

ARTICLE VIII

WAGES - COST OF LIVING FORMULA - PAY DAY

- 8.01 The parties agree that the cost-of-living ("C.O.L.A.") provision contained in our collective bargaining agreement on November 1, 1976, through October 31, 1978, shall continue in the collective bargaining agreements effective November 1, 1987, through October 31, 1988 and effective November 1, 1988 through October 31, 1991. There will be no C.O.L.A. payments made under said C.O.L.A. provision during the term of this contract. The Employer reserves the right to submit a proposal to modify or eliminate the C.O.L.A. provision at the expiration of this agreement.
- 8.02 The following rate changes will become effective during the term of this agreement:

Operations Department Bus Operator – Syracuse

04-01-24 - 9.5% - \$30.00 04-01-25 - 3.5% - \$31.05 04-01-26 - 3.5% - \$32.14

- (a) Retroactivity will be paid to all current employees from April 1, 2024 through May 5, 2024, plus;
 - Those who retired during the contract term.
 - Those brought back by agreement or by decision of Arbitrator.
- (b) Longevity Premium Pay

Full Time Operators will receive a \$0.50 per hour premium every five (5) years starting at ten (10) years of service. The premium will be added to your wage on the first Monday of the next month after the employee's seniority date.

(c) Retiree Part time Longevity

Full time operators who retire after December 17, 2021, and elect to remain working part time for the employer will be paid the operator rate, including longevity pay at which they retire. The part time retired operator will be eligible for the contractual pay increase under the bus operator's wages. However, they will not continue to receive longevity increases in the future. This rate of pay will be effective at the signing of this agreement (April 29, 2024) and not subject to retroactive pay.

Full time employees who retired prior to December 17, 2021, and elected to remain working and are currently working part time for the employer will receive the longevity pay at which it would be at their time of retirement. However, they will not continue to receive longevity increases in the future. This rate of pay will be effective at the signing of this agreement (April 29, 2024) and not subject to retroactive pay.

- 8.03 Pay Day:
 - (a) Thursday at 9:00 A.M. of each week shall be pay day for CNY Centro, Inc. (and as soon as possible after 8:00 A.M. for Centro of Oswego and Centro of Cayuga).

- (1) Effective the signing of this agreement (December 17, 2021), all new full time and part time employees will sign-up and be paid using direct deposit.
- (b) The Employer will pay employee scheduled to be off Thursday and Friday on Wednesday after 5:00pm.
- (c) The Union agrees on behalf of all bargaining members that any and all overpayments or other such errors in compensation, benefits or otherwise shall be repaid at the rate it was overpaid or an adjustment of \$.25 per hour whichever is greater, upon adequate proof of said overpayment. It is further agreed that during such period, the employee's compensation shall be temporarily adjusted by the amount necessary to correct the error, not to be lower than the current minimum wage. After such adjustment, the employee's salary shall revert to the negotiated rate. Employees are responsible for the bringing instances of overpayment to the company's attention as soon as they become aware of it. The company agrees that nominal overpayments may go undiscovered for a period of time; it is not the intent of the company to impose discipline in these instances.

Should an underpayment occur, it should be paid as follows:

- (1) If the underpayment amount is under \$100.00 the adjustment will be made the following pay period.
- (2) If the underpayment is over \$100.00 a separate check will be cut on Friday or the next business day and delivered as soon as possible, provided the Company is notified by 12:00pm noon on the day in question.

The Company agrees to specifically note, on bargaining unit checks, payments made on account of accident and incident reports, training, and student pay provisions.

8.04 Progression Rate – New Hires

(a) Operators hired after Signing of Agreement

(b) Any Employee who is scheduled to receive a progression rate increase will receive their increase effective the day/date in which the progression date occurs in a given week. This will apply to sections 8.04 and 16.02(c).

ARTICLE IX

VACATIONS - ALL EMPLOYEES

NOTE: For Vacation schedules, see individual department.

9.01 Service Requirements;

Employees will be eligible for vacation weeks on the basis of the following:

Years of	Vacation Weeks
Service	Available
after 20	5
after 10	4
after 5	3
after 2	2
after 1	1

This provision will take effect starting in calendar year 2008.

All employees with more than 23 years of service before December 31, 2007, will receive 1 additional floating holiday starting in calendar year 2008. Employees who do not have 23 years of service before 12-31-07 will not be entitled to the extra floating holiday.

- 9.02 The vacation schedule for all employees will start January 1 and must be completed by December 31. An employee who takes vacation the last full week of December, will be required to take the vacation week pre-paid.
- 9.03 Employees will receive their vacation pay the pay period prior to the start of their vacation if requested. Once prepaid vacation has been received, the employee cannot move the vacation week(s) associated with the payment. This includes current open vacation weeks and any future openings in the vacation schedule that may come up for bid.

9.04 Vacations

- (a) An employee will be allowed to change their vacation in case of an emergency provided it is mutually agreed upon between the Union and the Employer and it is within the vacation schedule.
- (b) The selection of vacations will be in accordance with continuous seniority. Effective the signing of this agreement, the number of employees allowed on vacation will be a minimum of three (3) each week.

Additional vacation slots will be given as follows:

On full weeks when the Syracuse B.O.E. closes - 3 additional

On full weeks when Syracuse University closes - 23 additional

It is understood that the Employer has the right to vary the above schedule by five (5) slots each week if necessary based on demands for service.

Exceptions to the above schedule are as follows:

State Fair week(s) – 5 total vacation slots will be allowed

Thanksgiving week – 10 total vacation slots will be allowed

New Years Week – 19 total vacation slots will be allowed when the B.O.E. is off for the full week.

Summer Months (after June sign-up) – 30 total vacation slots will be allowed

The Employer and the Union agree that if the contracts with the Syracuse B.O.E. and/or Syracuse University and/or other service changes are canceled or adjusted, adjustments to the above vacation schedule will be negotiated.

During Thanksgiving week, Christmas week, New Years week and any full week when Syracuse University closes, up to five (5) part-time operators will be allowed to perform any assigned work. Runs with the latest completion time will be filled first, then the latest shows will be filled except as 14.03(c)(2) applies. The start of late runs or late shows shall not commence before 1:00pm.

- (1) If holiday falls during employee's vacation, they will receive holiday pay in advance also.
- (2) Operations Department: When a holiday occurs during the vacation period selected by an employee, said employee may take a day off at a time designated by the supervisor within a two-week period following the vacation period, or such day off may be taken as a floating holiday subject to the following:
 - a. The floating holiday can only by selected after the vacation period has been used.
 - b. Selection of the floating holiday will be made only from available openings.
- (3) When vacation periods become open in the Operations Department, if there is more than one (1) slot open, an operator may sign the vacation book. If there is only one slot open, it will be put up for bid for one week. If a slot is marked no bid it may be signed at any time. A copy of the bid sheets will be given to the Union, plus a copy of the bid winners upon request.
 - a. This is will not apply to the following weeks(s) State Fair, full weeks when school is closed except summer vacation and any week that includes New Years Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas

The above vacation weeks will be put up for bid whenever an opening(s) occur(s).

- (4) Vacation allowance for all regular operators will be on the basis of what their run pays at the time they take their vacation. Vacation allowance for garage and maintenance employees shall be on the basis of forty (40) hours per week at their regular hourly rate including night bonus, if applicable. Extra operators' vacation allowance will be on the basis of forty-five (45) hours per week at the regular hourly rate.
- (5) Employees, who because of service time earn additional vacation in a given year, can schedule their additional vacation any time during the calendar year in which it is earned. If the employee separates from the Company prior to earning the additional vacation, the employee will reimburse the company at payout.
- (c) Vacations Mechanical Department
 - (1) The selection of vacation in Maintenance Department shall be in accordance of seniority within each specific department and will sign on the first Monday of October each year as follows:

Number of employees Off each week
1
1
2
2
2
2
1
1
2
1
1
1
3
icer 1

- a. Floating holidays will be selected after the vacation selection.
- b. Maintenance department employees with at least three (3) weeks of earned vacation time per year may break up one (1) week of vacation per calendar year. This may not occur until after the normal selection of vacation and floating holidays has been completed.
- (2) For any employee who has a holiday that falls on a Saturday or during their vacation, such employee will be permitted to take a day off in the week previous to or following their vacation or another time agreeable to both parties.
- (3) In accordance with the foregoing schedule, no more than twelve (12) employees in the Mechanical Department will be off on vacation in any given

week, except that a department supervisor may let off an additional employee in certain situations. It is understood, however, that not more than a total of five (5) employees are to be off the week before "State Fair Week" and no floating holidays are to be taken that same week, unless agreed to by the Employer. No Board Person will be allowed off during "State Fair Week". No Facility Technicians are allowed time off two (2) weeks prior to the "State Fair week".

- a. In accordance with section 9.04(c)(1), two (2) floating holidays for the week will be allowed during any vacation week that has reached maximum allotment. Floating holidays cannot be scheduled on the same day of the week.
- b. When an employee signs for more than two (2) floating holidays during the same week, this shall eliminate a vacation week from the department's vacation allotment. Floating holidays cannot be scheduled on the same day of the week.
- c. Employees who transfer to another department or shift after the vacation and floating holiday sign-up period, will be required to re-sign at the bottom of their "new" department until the next vacation sign-up.
- d. The Employer and the Union agrees that if the contracts with the Syracuse B.O.E. and/or Syracuse University and/or service changes are canceled or adjusted, adjustments to the above vacation schedule will be negotiated.
- e. The Foreman and Backup Foreman from the same department cannot be off on the same day.
- (4) When vacation periods become open in the Mechanical Department, they shall be bid on to the extent of one movement per vacancy. Copies of the original bid sheet when posted will be made available to the Union. Also, the name(s) of the bid winners will be made available to the Union upon request.
- (5) Garage employees may work during their vacation period if mutually agreed upon between the employee, Employer, and the Union. Employees will be paid their straight time rate up to 40 hours and their overtime rate after 40 hours.
- (6) Employees may utilize floating holidays in half day increments after the vacation and floating holiday sign-up in accordance with 9.04(c) (3) (a) and (b). Two (2) half days will count towards one (1) full day in accordance with 9.04(c) (3) (a) and (b) and up to five (5) floating holidays can be used in half day increments. Two employees can not be off from the same department of the same day.
- 9.05 The Employer agrees to notify the Union of any changes in the original vacation schedules.

9.06 The following hours must be worked for an employee to earn one (1) full year of credit:
Operations Department - 2,000 pay hours
Maintenance Department - 1,850 pay hours

For the computation of hours, the time incurred in the following will be included:

- 1. Vacations
- 2. Holidays
- 3. Military Leave Up to the maximum of the law
- 4. Union Business (All time lost from work hours)
- 5. Jury Duty
- 6. Funeral Leave
- 7. Absences due to work-related illness or injury, up to a maximum of 1,000 hours per injury or illness.

If an employee returns to work and then goes back out due to work-related injury within 6 months of their return to work, they will be allowed to draw upon the balance of the credit hours as stated in 9.06(7) and 12.02(7), if any. If an employee returns to work and works consistently for a period of 6 months or longer, they will be eligible for additional total credits as stated in 9.06(7) and 12.02(7).

- 8. Absences due to non-work-related sickness or injury, up to a maximum of 360 hours per calendar year.
- 9.07 An employee not working the aforementioned hours will earn vacation credits on a prorated basis.
- 9.08 Vacation credits are earned on the basis of hours worked in a calendar year starting in 1982, beginning for the vacation period of 1983 and for each year thereafter.
- 9.09 A new employee must work one (1) full year before they are eligible to take any earned vacations.
- 9.10 In the event of the death of an employee and such employee at the time of their death was eligible for vacation as provided herein, their vacation pay will be paid to the employee's estate.
- 9.11 (a) Employees approaching retirement shall have the option of either taking their earned vacation prior to the retirement or taking vacation pay in lieu of vacation after retirement.
 - (b) When a laid-off employee returns to work, the time they have been laid off will be counted as hours worked up to and including 325 hours for pension and vacation credits. An employee recalled from lay-off will be credited with past service insofar as vacation weeks are concerned.
- 9.12 If an employee is not working due to illness/injury, and as a result of such absence can not benefit from their previously selected vacation, said employee, upon their return to work will be allowed to re-sign for the vacation provided the employee returns to work prior to the end of the calendar year. It is understood that vacations can not be carried over unless there are no open vacation slots left in the current calendar year. In this case the employee will sign for their vacations after all other employees have signed or bid on open vacation weeks provided there are two or more open slots available.

ARTICLE X

HOLIDAYS

- 10.01 (a) All employees shall be allowed twelve (12) holidays with pay, provided such employee has been in the service of the Employer more than six (6) months.
 - (b) An employee who has been in the employ of the Employer more than six (6) months and who is required to work on New Year's Day, Decoration Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas, and six (6) holidays, two of which honors the late Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. and Juneteenth, based on a schedule submitted by the Employer and signed up in accordance with seniority, shall receive a day's pay in addition to the employees regular pay, pay to be computed on the basis of eight (8) hours. Effective in calendar year 1998, an additional floating holiday will be available in accordance with these provisions.
 - (c) In order to receive additional pay for holidays, an employee shall have worked (unless excused) any scheduled or assigned work on the day previous to, the day of, and the day succeeding a holiday. Provided, however, that if an employee is unable to report for work because of illness or injury prior to the holiday, the employee shall be entitled to one (1) holiday's pay until they return to work.
 - (d) An employee who reports in sick the day before or the day after a paid holiday, more than once during a twelve-month period, must submit a doctor's certificate to be eligible for the holiday pay.
 - (e) If an employee is not working due to illness or injury, and as a result of such absence cannot benefit from their previously selected floating holiday(s), said employee, upon their return to work, will be allowed to resign for the above floating holiday(s), providing they return to work before the end of the calendar year.
 - It is understood that floating holidays cannot be carried over to another year unless there are no days available in the current year. In this case, the employee will sign for their floating holiday(s) after all other employees have signed.
- 10.02 (a) An employee whose schedule does not call for him/her to work on Sundays will have twelve (12) holidays off with pay. If the employee is scheduled to work on a holiday, they will be allowed to bid on another floating holiday on a mutually agreeable date.
 - (b) If an operator has more than six (6) months seniority with the Employer and signs on a run or combination that does not work on a holiday due to the run or combination not working on a Sunday schedule, they shall be paid eight (8) hours pay in lieu of run pay, and not be required to work any other assigned work.
 - (c) If the operator has less than six (6) months seniority in the above situation, the Employer will give the operator the option of working on the holiday or not working on the holiday. If the operator does not work, they will not be paid
- 10.03 In the Maintenance Department, all holidays will be operated on a Sunday schedule. The Union agrees that there will be sufficient employees available at the straight time rate to meet the said Sunday schedule on the basis of seniority.

- 10.04 Any holidays which are hereafter declared by the State and Federal Governments to be State or National holidays, will be given to the membership if a Sunday schedule is operated on said day by the Employer.
- 10.05 Employees scheduled to work on holidays and failing to report shall not receive pay for the holiday.
- 10.06 If you call in and inform the dispatcher you will not make it on time for your assigned work and the dispatcher requests that you come in, you must report within two (2) hours from the time your assigned work is due to report to qualify for payment of holiday pay. If employee is instructed not to come in, they will still receive holiday

ARTICLE XI

GROUP TERM LIFE INSURANCE, DISABILITY, GROUP HEALTH, DENTAL, VISION

11.01 Group Term Life Insurance

- (a) Centro will provide a group term life insurance benefit of \$50,000 for full-time employees effective the signing of this agreement.
- (b) Future retirees after the signing of the contract (December 17, 2021) will receive a \$20,000 death benefit prior to age 75. After age 75, the death benefit will be \$3,000. No new full-time employees hired after the signing of this agreement will receive a retirement death benefit.

Exception: Employees on pension by reason of disability, before age 60, as covered by Continuation of Insurance provisions set forth in Company Group Insurance contract. The Company will distribute Group Insurance contracts to all employees.

11.02 Disability

Weekly benefits for disability, or sickness or non-occupational accidents in the amount of 60% of the basic weekly pay to a maximum of \$250.00 per week. Weekly benefits will be paid to employees for a maximum of twenty-six (26) weeks during any fifty-two (52) consecutive weeks following the first day of disability caused by non-occupational injury, and the eighth (8th) day of sickness. Employees out of work and receiving disability payments shall not be required to pay the weekly healthcare contribution up to a maximum of 26 weeks. Employees who are collecting Workers Compensation or No-Fault payments are not eligible for this contribution waiver.

11.03 Group Health Plan - Full Time Employees

(a) The Company will provide group health benefits to all full-time employees covered by this agreement. A Point of Service plan will be offered. This Plan allows a covered participant the option of choosing to either receive health care from a member of the Preferred Provider Network or from a health care provider who is not a member of the Preferred Provider Network. The Plan will consist of single, double, and family coverage for all medically necessary and specified well-care services. The benefits provided will be those described in the Plan document. A summary plan booklet, mutually agreed upon by the Company and Union, will be periodically issued by the Company to employees.

(b) The Business Agent and/or a member of the Union Executive Board shall be a member of the Self Insured Health TPA (Third Party Administrator) specification formulation process so as to participate in determining the minimum required services deemed necessary to comply with negotiated health benefits. The BA and/or Executive Board member shall also participate in the technical review/evaluation process in order to evaluate the proposals submitted by prospective TPA's so as to assist in determining which TPA offer the best value and service for the Authority.

The BA shall at their discretion make an independent recommendation to the CNYRTA Board of Directors should the BA deem it necessary.

Nothing contained herein shall be construed to allow the Employer and/or the CNYRTA Board of Directors to reduce health plan benefits during the term of this Agreement.

(c) Services provided by an out-of-network ancillary provider or physician to an employee or covered dependent who is admitted to an in-network hospital will be paid as if those providers are in-network. This will only apply to services rendered to the employee and covered dependents while admitted.

11.04 Deductible, Co-Insurance, Co-Payment, and Maximum Benefit

All covered medical services of the Point of Service Plan will be subject to deductible, co-insurance, co-payment, annual out-of-pocket maximum, and lifetime maximum benefit according to the Schedule of Benefits of the Plan document.

Physician's co-payment of \$20.00

Physician's Specialist co-payment - \$35.00

Emergency room co-payment - \$250.00 (waived if admitted)

Ambulance coverage is paid in full after a \$100.00 co-payment is made for both inand out-of-network providers.

Out Patient Surgery co-payment - \$50.00

In-Patient Hospital co-payment - \$150.00

Diagnostic lab co-payment - \$10.00 per test with max of \$200.00 per year

Advanced Imaging (x-ray) co-payment - \$15.00 per test

In-Network Medical Out of Pocket Maximum Single Plan - \$1,000.00 per year Double/Family Plan - \$2,400.00 per year

Out of Network Medical Out of Pocket Maximum Single Plan - \$2,250.00 per year Double/Family Plan - \$4,500 per year

11.05 Prescription Drugs

The Prescription Drug benefit will not be subject to the Plan's deductible. This benefit will require a shared payment for the use of non-generic prescription drugs as follows:

When generic drugs are used: \$5.00 co-payment per prescription.

When non-generic drugs are used: \$20.00 co-payment per prescription.

When premium drugs are used: \$35.00 co-payment per prescription

The Company will provide a mail-order prescription drug service. This service will be mandatory for all employees and dependents who are taking on-going maintenance drugs. The Plan will require one co-payment per mail-order prescription for up to a three-month supply.

11.06 Cost Containment

The Plan will contain administrative procedures to efficiently manage health care benefits and reduce medical costs. The Plan will include the following procedures:

Pre-Admission Testing Second Surgical Opinion Mandatory Hospital Pre-Certification

The parties shall meet as soon as practicable during the contract term to discuss mutually acceptable revisions to the current health care plan design which may be of benefit in providing necessary group health care on a cost-effective basis.

11.07 Alternative Health Plans - HMO, PPO, and IPA

Full-time employees may elect to join the alternative health care providers recognized by the Company in lieu of the Point of Service Plan. The Company and the Union will mutually agree upon which two health care providers will be offered to employees and retirees.

11.08 Group Health Plan Cost

(a) The Company will pay the entire monthly premium cost for the Point of Service Plan. Should a full-time employee enroll with an alternative health care provider, the Company is responsible for the cost of the monthly premium equal to the Point of Service Plan's monthly premium.

Employees shall contribute to health care premium costs on the following basis:

Effective the signing of this agreement all employees hired before July 30, 1999 will pay ten dollars (\$10.00) per week for employees selecting single coverage; fourteen dollars (\$14.00) per week for employees selecting double coverage; sixteen dollars (\$16.00) per week for employees selecting family coverage.

Effective July 30, 1999: All new hires will contribute fifteen percent (15%) of the health care premium.

(b) Employee premium contributions will be administered by payroll deduction. Inactive employees receiving medical coverage have the responsibility of keeping required payments current. The right of medical coverage shall be lost for failure to keep required premium payments current, upon written notice from the Company advising the employee and the Union Business Agent that coverage is in jeopardy, and providing a 14 day grace period within said time all past due amounts may be brought current.

(c) Employees shall have the option of declining coverage at any time upon providing the Company with verification that alternate coverage has been obtained. At the signing of this agreement, waiver payments will be paid according to the following schedule:

Family - \$3,000.00 per year Double - \$1,800.00 per year Single - \$1,200.00 per year

In the event an employee demonstrates that their spouse has fully lost alternate coverage, such employee may also re-enter the Company's plan effective the first day of the month following the Company's receipt of written notification and proof of lost coverage.

(1) In any situation where an employee or a retiree (or any combination thereof) is covered by any Company sponsored health/medical insurance program, whether as an employee/retiree or spouse or dependent, they will not be eligible to receive the incentive to waive participation in the plan. An employee or a retiree can not receive a dual benefit of receiving a waiver payment and being covered under any Company health insurance plan.

(d) Survivor Benefit

- (1) When an active employee dies and they were not eligible to retire at the time of death, their surviving spouse and eligible dependents at the time of employee's death shall be able to retain health coverage upon payment of the premium assessed all active employee on an ongoing annual basis, subject to the following scale:
 - If the employee had less than 5 years of active service, the survivor(s) must pay the premium equivalent in full.
 - If the employee had more than 5 years but less than 10 years of active service, the survivor(s) must pay 50% of the premium equivalent.
 - If the employee had more than 10 years but less than 20 years of active service, the survivor(s) must pay 25% of the premium equivalent.
 - If the employee had 20 or more years of active service, the Employer will be responsible for the cost of the survivor(s) health coverage.
- (2) When an active employee dies and they were eligible to retire at the time of death, their surviving spouse and eligible dependents can enroll in the retiree insurance plan and pay the retiree premium (if any). The surviving spouse is covered until death or is remarried. Dependents are covered under dependent rules. The provisions of article 11.11 apply.

11.09 Vision

Full-time employees and their covered dependents and Part-time employees (no dependents) will be eligible for a vision care benefit as follows: once during each two-year period a voucher will be available upon request which may be used as a credit, effective the signing of this agreement, toward an eye examination and/or corrective lenses at the provider of the bearer's choice.

- a. Full-Time and part-time employees will receive a four hundred dollar (\$400) vision credit
- b. Dependents of full-time employees will receive a three hundred dollar (\$300) vision credit

Part-Time employees will not be eligible for a vision benefit until employed for six (6) months or they are promoted to full-time status.

In the event that a provider does not accept the voucher for payment, the employee may pay the amount due to the provider submit a receipt for reimbursement according to the aforementioned schedule of payment.

11.10 Dental

The Company will provide full-time employees individual and family dental coverage as outlined in the Centro Dental Assistance Program booklet effective the signing of this agreement. The Company will pay the entire monthly premium cost for this benefit.

- 11.11 Retired Employees and covered Dependents Health and Dental Coverage
 - (a) A Point of Service Plan, offered to current full time employees will be provided to retired employees and their covered dependents. The plan will consist of single, double, and family coverage for all medically necessary and specified well-care health services. Only the spouse and dependents covered at the time an employee retires will be covered after said employee retires. Retirees will contribute toward the cost of the monthly premium based upon their years of (pension) service according to the schedule below:

0-5 years 100% 5-10 years 15% 10-15 years 10% 15-20 years 5%

Over 20 years No Contribution

Employees hired after June 29, 2007 will be based on the following schedule:

0-5 years 100% 5-10 years 50% 10-15 years 15% 15-20 years 10% 20-25 years 5%

Over 25 years No Contribution

Any new or current employee hired into a full time position after the signing of this agreement will not be entitled to post-retirement healthcare.

The percentage of contribution is based upon the monthly premium rates determined by the third party administrator (TPA) on an annual basis. The dollar amount of premium contribution determined at the time of retirement will remain fixed until all eligible dependents cease to be covered.

Payment for the above contribution shall be deducted from the retiree's monthly pension and paid to the employer. If monthly contribution is greater than the retiree's pension, the employer will bill the retiree for the remaining balance on a monthly basis. Retirees will lose coverage for failure to keep monthly premium payments current.

A change in dependent status (loss of spouse or eligible dependents) will result in the retiree paying a new premium contribution based on rates that were determined at the time of their retirement.

[Note: It is understood that employees reaching the age of 62 or older at the time of the signing of this agreement, regardless of the years of service, may retire between the signing of this agreement and December 31, 2007, with no requirement to make a contribution toward the health insurance premium. It is further understood that any employee who retires after December 31, 2007, will be required to contribute toward the cost of the monthly premium for health insurance according to the appropriate schedule above.]

- (b) The retiree may elect to participate in one of the alternative health care providers offered by the Company.
- (c) The Company will pay the monthly premium cost for the retired employees and their covered dependents enrolled in the Point of Service Health Plan. Should a retired employee enroll with an alternative health care provider, the Company is responsible for the cost of the monthly premium equal to the Point of Service Health Plan's monthly premium.
- (d) Retired employees and covered dependents eligible for Medicare, must enroll in Medicare Part A and B. Once an individual is eligible for Medicare, benefits from the Point of Service Health Plan will be paid as though that individual is receiving Medicare benefits.
- (e) The monthly premium cost of Medicare Part B is the retiree's responsibility.
- (f) The Prescription Drug Benefit for retired employees and their dependents will require a shared payment for the use of non-generic prescription drugs. This benefit will not be subject to the Plan's deductible.

The shared payment for prescription drug cost is referred to in section 11.05 under the collective bargaining agreement at time of retirement.

The Company will provide a mail-order prescription drug service. This service will be mandatory for all employees and dependents who are taking on-going maintenance drugs. The Plan will require one co-payment per mail-order prescription for up to a three-month supply.

- (g) The Company will provide retired employees and their covered dependents individual and family dental coverage as outlined in the Centro Dental Assistance Program Booklet effective with the signing of this agreement. The Company will pay the entire monthly premium cost for this benefit.
- (h) The surviving spouse and dependents of a deceased retiree will be provided the option of enrolling into the Point of Service Health Plan and the Centro Dental Assistance Program. The Company will pay the entire monthly premium cost for the respective plans. For employees who retire after December 31, 2007, payment of healthcare monthly premiums will be as outlined in 11.11(a).
- (i) Retirees and surviving spouses and dependents of deceased retirees who purchase health benefits prior to January 1, 1989, will be given the option of keeping their current health benefit or enrolling in the Point of Service Health Plan effective January 1, 1989. Should such individuals keep the health insurance purchased prior to January 1, 1989, they will have benefits under the terms and conditions of their respective plans at the time of retirement.
- (j) Retirees and surviving spouses and dependents of deceased retirees who purchased health benefits prior to August 1, 1997, will be given the option of keeping their current health benefit or enrolling in the Point of Service Plan effective January 1, 1998. Should such individuals keep the health insurance purchased prior to August 1, 1997, they will have benefits under the terms and conditions of their respective plans at the time of retirement.
- (k) Retirees and surviving spouses and dependents of deceased retirees will be given the option of changing their current health benefit provider during the Company's annual open enrollment period.
- (I) Employees may decline healthcare coverage at the time of retirement and choose a waiver option according to the schedule in 11.08(c). If the retiree selects the waiver, they will not be allowed to go back into the healthcare plan. If the employee's spouse dies during retirement or dependents become ineligible, then the waiver amount will be adjusted downward accordingly.
 - (1) Employees who retire, and would have paid 50% or more of the monthly medical premium rates, (determined by the third party administrator) may elect to waive enrollment in the retiree insurance plan, however they will not be eligible to receive the waiver payment.
- 11.12 The Company will offer to all full-time employees Flexible Spending Account, effective January 1, 1998. Flexible Spending Accounts will allow participating employees to pay expenses on a pre-tax basis in the following areas: Un-reimbursed health, dental, and vision care; child care and premium conversion. The benefits provided will be those described in the Plan document. A summary Plan booklet mutually agreed upon by the Company and the Union will be periodically issued by the Company to employees. So long as the Flexible Spending Accounts do not change, the Employer may select a new Third Party Administrator.
- 11.13 The Company will pay the premium for the Union Business Agent's health, life, dental, vision, and pension benefits effective January 1, 1997.

11.14 For purposes of obtaining a personal insurance policy, the company agrees to allow three (3) independent insurance agencies access to come onto the property twice a year with mutual consent of the Union. The dates will be determined by the Company.

ARTICLE XII

PENSION

12.01 Effective November 1, 1991, Centro will provide eligible employees a benefit of \$26.00 per month per year of service upon retirement at age 65, in accordance with the provisions of the "Non-Salaried Employee Pension Plan of CNY Centro, Inc.".

The pension scale will increase according to the following scale, for all past and future service, for employees retiring at age 65:

November 1, 1992: \$27 per month per year of service November 1, 1993: \$29 per month per year of service.

12.02 Effective November 1, 1998, retirement provisions will allow an employee to retire at age 62 (Normal Retirement Age) and receive a benefit of \$43.00 per month per year of service. If an employee meets early retirement requirements (at least age 55 with at least 25 years of service) the early retirement reduction from this amount will be from age 62.

Effective November 1, 2009, retirement provisions will allow an employee to receive a benefit of \$54.53 per month per year of service.

Pop-up provision option that will be cost neutral to the pension plan.

(a) Effective the signing of this agreement, all defined pension benefits will be increased by:

Effective April 1, 2024	3.0% - \$81.62
Effective April 1, 2025	3.0% - \$84.07
Effective April 1, 2026	2.0% - \$85.75

Employees who attain less than twenty-five (25) years of service at the time of their retirement will receive:

Effective April 1, 2024	3.0% - \$68.4	5
Effective April 1, 2025	3.0% - \$70.50	0
Effective April 1, 2026	2.0% - \$71.9	1

Early Retirement Option

Age 58 with 35 years of service – 3.0% penalty per year to age 62 Age 59 with 35 years of service – 2.0% penalty per year to age 62 Age 60 with 35 years of service – 1.5% penalty per year to age 62 Age 61 with 35 years of service – 1.0% penalty per year to age 62.

- (b) All employees hired (or transferred) into a full-time position (Operations or Maintenance) after the signing of this agreement will be required to participate in a defined contribution plan for the purposes of saving for retirement. (Employees hired (or transferred) after the signing of this agreement will not be eligible for participation in the defined benefit plan.) All employees will be required to contribute a minimum of 3% of their total weekly wage and the Company will match up to 3% of the employees' weekly wage paid for the first 45 hours of work. The employee contribution will be automatically deducted each pay period.
 - (1) The Company will match up to an additional 5% (Total of 8%) for any employee who voluntarily contributes above the mandated 3%.

Information regarding the details of the plan will be made available to the employee upon hire or upon request at any time.

Vesting for the defined contribution plan will be five (5) years.

- (c) The spouses of active employees who are not eligible to retire but have at least 25 years of service in the defined benefit plan and who become deceased, will be eligible to receive 100% of the Joint Survivor benefit without penalty based upon the total number of years of service the employee earned at the time of their death. For purposes of payment, the benefit will not begin until the employees 55th birthday.
- 12.03 Operations Department employees will earn one-half (1/2) year's pension credit for a minimum of 1,000 hours worked in each calendar year, plus one-tenth (1/10) of one (1) year's pension credit for each additional 185 hours worked. For the computation of hours, the time incurred in the following will be included:
 - 1. Vacations
 - 2. Holidavs
 - 3. Military Leave up to the maximum of the law
 - 4. Union Business (all time lost from work hours)
 - 5. Jury Duty
 - 6. Funeral Leave
 - 7. Absences due to work-related sickness or injury, up to a maximum of 1,000 pay
 - 8. Absences due to non-work related sickness or injury, up to a maximum of 360 pay hours.

An employee will not be eligible to receive more than one (1) year's pension credits in any given year.

An employee will be able to roll back one year, or roll ahead one year to pick up lost pension credits. An employee can pick up lost pension credit for all hours worked in excess of 2,000 hours in the Operations Department or 1,850 hours in the Maintenance Department.

12.04 The pension plan of the "non-salaried" employees as amended is outlined in the Employee's Benefit book. The Company will update and distribute the Employees' Benefit Book within 120 says the following ratification of this agreement.

12.05 (a) An employee who becomes disabled and is thereby wholly and continuously prevented from performing any work for the Employer (regardless of whether a position is actually available) may become eligible for a pension. This pension shall be paid at the same rate, determined by years of service, that applies to pensions granted to other employees upon normal retirement age. Disability shall be determined following examination by Employer physician.

With regard to the health benefits made available to disability pensioners, the Company will assume the cost of 100% of single coverage, and the cost of any applicable dependent coverage as follows:

Years of Service	Company Paid Premium
5 – 10	50 % *
10 – 20	75 % *
20+	100% *

* Of the dollar difference between the single premium cost (which is paid 100% by the Employer) and the dependent premium cost.

Disability pensioners shall lose the right of dependent medical coverage for failure to keep required premium payments current, upon written notice from the Company advising the employee and the Union Business Agent that coverage is in jeopardy, and providing a 14-day grace period within said time all past due amounts may be brought current.

In order to qualify, an employee must have a minimum of five (5) years of service credit. In the event an employee is unable to perform their duties due to permanent physical or mental incapacity, and does not meet the qualifications for disability retirement as defined in 12.05(a), the employee will be given the opportunity to return to employment without loss of seniority or benefits following separation from the company, by exercising seniority to bump back into the bargaining unit. This opportunity will be effective on the employee's date of separation. The employee will be offered re-employment upon re-certification by the employee's physician and the Company physician.

It is agreed that no "past practice" concerning application of disability pension benefits shall be relevant to application of this provision where such practice occurred prior to the effective date of this provision.

(b) When circumstances arise where an employee does not meet the eligibility requirements for a disability pension as set forth in section 12.05(a) above the employee may apply for a disability pension according to the provisions of this section.

An employee/applicant for a disability pension would meet the criteria to receive a Centro disability pension under this section if the employee has been deemed eligible to receive disability benefits from the Social Security Administration. The following also apply:

(1) In cases where employment terminates, and the employee has not already applied for a Social Security disability benefit, the terminated employee (or

their representative) will have 30 calendar days from the effective date of termination to apply for a Social Security Disability Benefit. If the terminated employee (or their representative) does not apply for a Social Security Disability Benefit within 30 calendar days from the date of termination and provide written proof of application from the Social Security Administration, to the Human Resources Department, then they will be ineligible for a Centro disability pension indefinitely.

- (2) Upon receipt of this written proof of application referenced above, the Company will extend medical/health insurance coverage for a period of 3 months after the employees' termination date for the purpose of providing the employee with medical/health insurance during the time the Social Security Administration is processing the application for Social Security disability benefit.
- (3) Disability pensions under guidelines of section 12.05(b) will be granted by the Company in accordance with this agreement upon receipt of written verification from the employee/applicant that the Social Security Administration has determined that they are disabled and awarded them a disability benefit. The verification should be in the form of a clear photo copy of the Social Security Administration approval letter or other such official correspondence from the Social Security Administration.
- (4) The Centro disability pension will continue to be offset by other payments received as described in section 12.07.
- (5) The Centro disability pension recipient will receive medical/health insurance benefits for a 24 month period immediately after the effective date of the award of the Social Security Disability Benefit provided the Social Security benefit is received in accordance with the terms of section 12.05(b) as well as all other terms of this agreement.
- (6) For any employee who has at least 25 years of service as calculated under plan rules, and is at least 55 years of age, and then is granted a Centro disability pension as described in section 12.05(b) shall be eligible to receive the Centro medical/health insurance benefit that is in effect upon reaching age 62. However, the coverage for eligible dependents will be established on the date they became eligible for the Centro disability pension.
- (7) The Company reserves the right to request any person receiving a Centro Disability Pension payment to submit proof that the employee is not employed by another other employer. This proof shall include, but not be limited to receipt of photocopies of federal income tax returns for the year immediately prior to the date of the request. In addition, the Company reserves the right to investigate any claim which may indicate a disability pensioner is employed lawfully or unlawfully.
- (8) In order for a person who is receiving a Centro disability pension to be eligible to continue to receive the pension the employee must continue to receive Social Security disability benefits and be prevented from performing any work for the Company or any other employer. In the event a person receiving a

Centro disability pension returns to work for the Company or any other employer they will immediately become ineligible for the Centro disability pension and Company sponsored health/medical insurance. Any person who is receiving a Centro disability pension and becomes employed lawfully or unlawfully must inform the Company in writing.

- (9) If a person is receiving a Centro disability pension and is subsequently reemployed with the Company or any other employer, the disability pension will stop immediately. However, upon reaching normal retirement age the employee will be eligible to commence their benefit which will be recalculated by the Company based upon payments already received.
- (10) In order to qualify, an employee must have a minimum of five (5) years of service credit. In the event and employee is unable to perform their duties due to permanent physical or mental incapacity, and does not meet the qualifications for disability retirement as defined in section 12.05(b), the employee will be given the opportunity to return to employment without loss of seniority or benefits following separation from the Company, by exercising seniority to bump back into the bargaining unit. This opportunity will be effective on the employee's date of separation. The employee will be offered re-employment upon re-certification by the employee's physician and the Company physician.
- (11) Section 12.05(b) is effective the date of the signing of this agreement.
- 12.06 Any employee who has fifteen (15) years of continuous service will be credited with all other years of service whether before or after said fifteen (15) years when computing their pension in accordance with the foregoing schedule. This provision will not apply to any person who is hired or rehired into a full time position after September 1, 2011.
- 12.07 An employee may receive a disability pension while receiving other disability benefits. There will, however, be an offset to the disability pension payments for any other disability benefits including, but no limited to, Workers' Compensation, Disability Insurance benefits, and No-Fault insurance benefits.
 - (a) In instances where lump sum payments are received by the employee in settlement of payments for any other disability benefits including, but not limited to, Workers' Compensation, Disability Insurance benefits, and No-Fault insurance benefits, the impact of the lump sum payment on the monthly disability pension payment will be determined by the pension plan actuary using a 3% interest rate applied to the lump sum payment and mortality table in use by current actuarial standards.
- 12.08 Effective November 1, 1987, the Company agrees to increase the monthly pension benefit of employees who have previously retired by 5% or a minimum of \$25 per month, whichever is greater.
- 12.09 The Union will be notified of any administrative changes/updates to the pension plan document prior to implementation.

ARTICLE XIII

SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR OPERATORS (ALL)

13.01 Sign-Up:

- (a) The current seniority list of names shall be placed in the operator's room, starting with the operator with the most seniority in service and so on in rotation through the entire list.
- (b) (1) Schedules showing run numbers and hours and minutes that each run works shall be posted five (5) days before going into effect excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays. A schedule will be posted showing hours and minutes with the corresponding wages and the amount each run pays.
 - (2) Before the first operator in seniority signs up, manifests and run guides showing what a run works, days off, and the weekly pay will be posted in sequence as to the run number.
 - (3) When an operator signs up, the operator will at that time be given a current draft copy of their manifest.

NOTE: Employer not responsible for errors when total weekly pay may show more than actual. The formula for calculation of run pay will be available at each sign-up.

- (c) The selection of runs shall be in accordance with seniority.
- (d) Any trippers which the Employer may elect to put up for bid shall be bid by operators in order of seniority. No holding time will be allowed between the end of an operator's run and the time the tripper is scheduled to leave the garage. It is understood that all trippers signed up for by regular operators will be subject to change.
- (e) An employee may pass up a run and work the extra list if he so desires provided the runs remaining are assigned to eligible employees at the bottom of the seniority list [see 13.02(e)].
- (f) (1) Fourteen (14) calendar days, sooner if possible, before a sign-up is scheduled to begin a daily schedule, excluding Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays, will be posted showing the day and starting time when operators are scheduled to sign up.
 - (2) When an operator is scheduled to sign up, the operator will be required to be available to sign up in accordance with the posted scheduled starting time. Any operator who is working and has not left a choice must be relieved and available to sign up in accordance with the posted scheduled starting time. A book for choices will be available at the dispatcher's window for operators wishing to leave a choice. Choices must be signed by operators.

- (3) An operator either refusing to sign up in turn within a specific time, or not available to sign up in turn shall be assigned by the proper Union representative to the nearest possible run, or days off on the extra list that the operator has on the sign-up due to expire.
- (g) Operators who must be relieved from their runs so that they may sign up in the proper seniority shall either notify the service supervisor that they wish to be relieved or leave a choice of runs they choose, and they will be paid for all time lost. Employees who appear on their own time shall be paid one (1) hour, and employees who are on their day off required to appear for sign-up be paid one and one half (1 ½) hours at the straight time rate.
- (h) In the event that an operator is absent in their turn to sign up, the operator may leave a choice or call at their scheduled time.
- (i) There will be at least three (3) sign-ups yearly to become effective in February, June, and September, or when timetables change or vacancies occur. The selection of runs will take place not more than three weeks prior to each sign-up with the exception of the September sign-up, which will take place three weeks ahead of Syracuse University's fall semester start date. One line sign-up shall be permitted between each general sign-up. If as a result of a line sign-up an operator loses a tripper, the operator shall be guaranteed the opportunity to bid on an open tripper.
- (j) The Employer agrees to pay the necessary time of the member of the Executive Committee in charge of sign-up, except the Business Agent, based upon the following schedule:
 - The member will be removed from their regular work for the week and have Sat/Sun off.
 - 15.02(a)(b) will apply to determine daily pay while conducting the sign-up.
 - If the sign-up ends early, the member will be placed on the extra list and work between the hours of their normal run/work.
 - If Sat/Sun is not one of their regular days off, they will be allowed to add their name to the day off list for the week.
- (k) Bus operators who are scheduled to operate shifts, turnbacks, or extra service as directed by a supervisor as part of a regular run:
 - (1) Will not be used once they bring their bus into the garage.
 - (2) Cannot be used within the last ten minutes of their run segment.
 - (3) Cannot be required to work overtime unless by mutual consent.
- (I) In the case where a sign-up becomes effective during a holiday week, the holiday will be governed by the previous sign up, and the new sign-up will then take effect on the following day.
- (m) The order for signing on trippers for the beginning of each sign-up will be full-time, retirees, part-time, and eligible maintenance employees (see order change below).

In cases where the number of available trippers exceeds the maximum number of part-time operators that can be used at one time, the following procedure shall govern the order of signing for tripper work at the Syracuse facility:

- (1) Full-time operators, as they sign for runs, will concurrently be permitted to sign for trippers in accordance with section 25.01(8) and 25.01(25).
- (2) Retirees will sign second, after full-time sign-up is completed.
 - a. If retirees vacate their tripper(s) by taking a leave of absence longer than 30 calendar days they shall be deemed to have given up their work for that sign-up. Retiree may not sign-up if their leave of absence goes beyond the start of a new sign-up and can only select available work when they return. Retirees who sign for work must be available to work on the first day of the sign-up.
- (3) The number of part-time operators that may be used at one time is defined in Article 25.01(8) and 25.01(25). In any situation where the number of available trippers is equal or less than that number, the tripper book will be closed to full-time drivers and part-time operators and eligible maintenance employees will sign.
- (4) Maintenance Department employees who are certified to operate a bus in revenue service may then sign on open trippers that do not interfere with their regular full-time duties. It is understood that the straight-time rate shall be paid to said Maintenance Department employees performing tripper work. Qualification procedures and pay rate progression for said employees are defined in the Memorandum of Understanding dated November 11, 1992.
 - Maintenance Department employees performing tripper work will be governed at either straight time or overtime rate of pay in accordance with DOL regulations.
- (5) If, following the opportunity for all part-time operators to sign as in (3) above, there remain any unsigned trippers, the Company will put them up for bid. Such unsigned trippers would be posted for bidding one week in advance. The bid process will be available to full-time operators, as well as Maintenance Department employees who are qualified as in (4) above. The bids will come down at 4:00 pm on the Thursday prior to the week in which the trippers operate, and will be awarded by seniority. Any trippers not bid on will be worked off the extra list or offered to full-time operators, including full-time operators on their day off.
- (n) When Syracuse University shuttle commences full operation one week prior to the beginning of the September sign-up, operators who have signed on such runs for September will begin operating them the week prior to the effective date of the signup. Notice of this will be posted as part of the September sign-up. The runs vacated will be put up for bid and take effect the same day the Syracuse University shuttle commences. Up to three (3) operators will be allowed to remain on their summer run based on seniority provided they declare their intention at the time they sign-up during the September sign-up.

- (o) Any operator who wishes to perform extra work between or after their scheduled work shall sign the Daily Extra Worksheet. The Daily Extra Worksheet shall come down at 11:00am the day before the work is assigned and any operator who signed the Daily Extra Worksheet will be called in order of seniority after the day off list for the next day has been called. When signing, the operator shall specify what hours they are available to work. Any operator who has a week day off or whose first report is a relief, may call-in their request to work by 11:00am to be considered for work. Also, any operator who has weekends or Sundays off may call in their request to work extra on Monday by 11:00am Sunday morning. Operators who receive work will be notified in person or by radio. The Daily Extra Worksheet will be made available at 9:30 pm the previous day.
- (p) Available work for Carrier Dome events and all sub-contracted convention events shall be posted for bid if received prior to five (5) days in advance of the event. The work shall be assigned in order of seniority for each day of event.
 - (1) The posting for each such event will offer choices of preferences of work assignment within the event (e.g. for Carrier Dome: pre-event ticket, charter, disabled shuttle, continuous shuttle, post event). On occasions when there are multiple events of this type occurring simultaneously, options will be offered on the sign-up sheet so that operators can also designate their order of preference between the events.
 - (2) Work assignments shall be posted in advance of the event.
 - (3) Operators who sign a posting for an event may remove their name from the posting up to forty-eight (48) hours prior to the event. All operators whose names remain on the work assignment posting shall report for assigned work.
 - (4) Operators who are assigned such event work may also accept regular day off work or NYS Fair work, provided that it does not conflict with the special event assignment.
 - (5) For conventions, for the first Carrier Dome football and basketball games of the season, and for Carrier Dome non-athletic events, work will be assigned in order of seniority.
 - (6) For subsequent Carrier Dome football and basketball games which occur on the same day of the week as a previous game, work will be rotated beginning with the first person who did not receive pre-event work for the previous event. Operators who performed post-event Carrier Dome work or who do not get work, but did sign the list, will move up in rotation for the next event.

Operators who did not sign on the previous event, but sign on the next event that occurs on the same day of the week, will be placed in the rotation according to their seniority, and will not move ahead in the rotation.

Operators may not accept a show on their day off if the show-up time is three (3) hours or less before their special event report time. Operators may accept any day off work before or after their assigned special event work provided the day off work does not overlap the special event work.

If an operator is on a day off show and catches a piece of work in proper sequence that goes beyond the report time of their special event report time, they must finish the work they are on and the special event work may be filled from the sign-up sheet for that event or from the extra list. If the special event work is filled from the extra list, and at least two (2) hours remain until the conclusion of the special event work, the day off operator performing other work will relieve the extra list operator working the special event. The rotation for the next special event will not penalize any operator as set forth above.

Note: Separate rotation lists for the above such events will be maintained for full-time operators, maintenance employees, and part-time operators.

13.02 Bids and Hold Downs:

- (a) When the Employer has information that a run will be open for five (5) days or more due to sickness or 13.01(n), the run shall be posted for bid immediately for a period of five (5) days as a hold down and shall remain posted for bid until Thursday at 4:00 pm and said run will be taken on the first day of the following work week (Monday). It is understood that an operator returning to work will take their run at the beginning of the next work week.
- (b) The Employer shall post a sick list in the dispatcher's office showing any run open for five (5) days.
- (c) All runs open due to vacations shall be considered a hold down by operators on the extra list and bid by seniority.
 - (1) Extra List operators with Sat/Sun off may bid on any run with Sat/Sun off. Extra List operators with Sun/Mon or split days off may bid on any run without Sat/Sun off. Operators may not bid on another vacation hold down that starts prior to the end of the vacation hold down they are currently working. However, Call-A-Bus runs open due to vacations shall be considered a hold down for operators on the extra list to be bid by seniority, regardless of days off.
 - a. When a Call-A-Bus runs becomes open due to vacation or military leave and the situation is such that five the (5) day bidding period is not possible, the Operations Department will contact extra list operators in order of seniority and offer them the hold down. This process will commence when the Operations Department is made aware that a Call-A-Bus run is open. It is understood that, if the Operations Department leaves a message for an operator, the operator will have adequate time to respond.
 - (2) The process in section 13.02(a) shall apply for extra list operators seeking hold downs.
 - (3) In the event that the regular operator changes or works their vacation, the hold down shall be come a no bid. In the event that the regular operator returns during their scheduled vacation, they shall be placed on their regular assigned run in accordance with section 13.02(a), and the extra list operator

shall return to their proper position on the extra list on the first Monday of their return. Runs open on a daily basis due to an operator working part of their vacation shall be worked by the extra list.

- (4) Any runs not bid on, will be covered by the extra list in the normal rotation.
- (5) Part-time operators are excluded from this provision.
- (d) Extra list sign-ups and bids:
 - (1) In the event that an extra list sign-up takes place, notice of such sign-up will be posted on Monday to take effect the following Monday.
 - (2) Saturday/Sunday, Saturday/Sunday/Holidays, Sunday/Monday, and Sunday/Monday/Holidays as they become open on the extra list during the course of a sign-up will be put out for bid by the extra list operators.
- (e) All operators who transfer from part-time status to full-time will be assigned to the extra list at the time of their transfer unless said transfer takes place at the beginning of a sign-up period and they will sign for work based on seniority.
 - (1) When a run is put up for bid for any reason and is not signed on, the lowest seniority eligible operator on the extra list will be assigned said run beginning the following Monday. Any new full-time operators who have completed the 30 working day period will be assigned to runs that were previously assigned to eligible low seniority runs, provided that the operator working the run notifies the employer that they prefer to work the extra list.
 - (2) If, during a new full-time operator's first thirty working days, there arises a bid or sign-up situation, the new operator may bid on such work in accordance with the contract. The new full-time operator would continue on the extra list until completing the 30 day period, after which time the operator would assume any run successfully bid upon. Until the new operator is able to assume said run, the run will:
 - if open less than five (5) days, be worked off the extra list
 - if open more than five (5) days, be put up for bid in the interim.
- (f) In the event there is in use a List #1 and #2 and a change to either is posted on Monday to take effect the following Monday, said change shall require notification to the operator, verified by the operator's signature or by taped phone recording.
- (g) When an employee is not working due to sickness or disability, the employee can, if the employee so chooses, sign on runs which may be up for bid.
- (h) Cancellation of a Bid, etc.

If after you have signed your name on a bid for a run, days off, vacation, etc., you decide that you do not want the particular bid, the following procedure will apply.

1) Do not cross your name off yourself.

- 2) Inform the dispatcher on duty that you wish to have your name crossed off from the bid(s) and/or "Day-Off Book", etc. To insure that there is no mix up, it would be best to either call on the tape phone, or leave a signed note with the dispatcher designating exactly what you want crossed off.
- 3) The dispatcher will then cross your name off and initial same.
- (1) If the employee who wins the bid is unable to work the following Monday due to the sickness or disability, the employee with the 2nd highest seniority on the bid will be awarded the run, as a hold down only.
- (2) When the disabled or sick employee who originally won the bid on the basis of seniority returns to work, the bump-back procedure in Section 13.02(a) will apply.
- (3) The vacation pay for the disabled or sick operator will be on the basis of the last run the employee actually worked.
- (I) No one, including Union or Employer representatives, will be allowed to sign an open bid for another operator. Said operator must physically sign the bid sheet.

13.03 Overtime:

- (a) All overtime work shall be paid for at one and one half (1 ½) times the regular hourly rate.
- (b) Operators not scheduled to work on a holiday will be paid at time and one-half for all work performed on a holiday.
- (c) The overtime rate will not be paid to an employee voluntarily working on their day(s) off if the employee was absent from work during the pay period. In this case, the operator will be paid as if it were a regular working day.

A slip will be signed by the employee if said day off work is to be paid at the overtime rate. If the operator does not voluntarily agree to work at the straight time rate, said operator will, for that day, be the last in seniority for day-off work as outlined in 13.04(b) (5) & (6).

13.04 Day Off Work

- (a) Operators notified to report for work on their days off shall be paid for all time on report at the straight time rate and for time worked at the overtime rate except if inconsistent with 13.03(c) above and will be guaranteed three (3) hours at the straight time rate for the first report and three (3) hours at the straight time rate for the second report.
- (b) (1) Operators desiring to work on their scheduled days off will place their name on a list to be posted at the beginning of each sign-up.

- (2) The names on this list for each day, Monday through Sunday, will be arranged in order of seniority.
- (3) If an operator wishes to be added to the list for a particular day after the effective date of a sign-up, their name will be placed at the bottom of the list. If more than one such request is made at a given time, said operators will be entered at the bottom of the list according to seniority. Any operator on such a list and whose days off change must notify the Operations Center of this change.
- (4) Calls made to operators on a day-off list will be made in the sequence listed, with no deferrals for vacations, sickness, or any other reason. For all scheduled work known by 4:00 pm, the Employer will call by 7:00 pm. Operators working at the time when they are up for day off work will be contacted by radio or supervisor.
- (5) Effective the first day of each sign-up, station supervisors will request operators to work on their day off from this list in order of seniority.
- (6) On the corresponding day of each week the station supervisors will start where they left off on the list on the preceding week.
- (7) A separate list will be kept to show if the operator worked, refused to work, or could not be contacted.
- (8) Union officers will have access to the lists used for distribution of extra work on the operator's days off

(c) Holiday Off List -

Full time operators will be eligible to sign the Holiday Day off list during the Spring sign-up period which will cover all National holidays from Memorial Day 2020 to New Year's day 2021. The list will start with the most senior operator and rotate according to the amount of work needed to be covered. The list will then re-start where it stopped from the previous holiday. If a full-time operator signs after the Spring sign-up period, their name will be added to the bottom of the list.

13.05 Equipment Operation:

(a) When an employee is instructed to operate a vehicle after advising the radio dispatcher or employee's department supervisor of a specific defect or deficiency or perceived safety concern, in this instance only the employee shall not be held responsible for any consequences that result from this specific defect (or) deficiency.

13.06 Time Distribution:

(a) Whenever there is a question as to an operator's distribution of time, the President or Business Agent or member of the Executive Board of the Union will have access to the time sheets upon request to the official in charge.

- (b) The Employer agrees to make a close check on all extra work assignments from day to day and the Union agrees to report any alleged irregularity as promptly as possible.
- (c) Relief and distribution of time for all runs shall be adjusted between the officials of the Employer and the officers of the Union.
- (d) In cases where buses are delayed by accident or blockade so that employees necessarily arriving on the same cannot reach their place of employment on time, the question of payment for lost time shall be taken up for adjustment between the head of the department and the committee of the Union.

13.07 Journey Time:

When operators after finishing their day's work are requested to go to garage for extra work and receive none, they shall be compensated with not less than one hour's pay at the regular rate.

Operators relieved at points other than the garage and who journey for a distance for the purpose of turning in lost articles shall be paid scheduled time between garage and relief points; however, it is agreed that the Employer will provide an adequate container for manifests at the Transit Hub and service supervisors will accept lost articles from drivers who are relieved at the Transit Hub and are not required to go to the garage.

13.08 Instruction - Training:

- (a) The Employer has the right to determine the training requirements and training needs of its employees. However, the Employer agrees to meet and discuss the training needs and training requirements with the Union before implementation.
- (b) The Union recognizes the benefit of proper training and agrees to cooperate with the Employer in this area.
- (c) Operators shall receive not less than \$1.00 per hour above their regular rate while instructing students. Operators have an obligation to do their utmost to provide training in accordance with Company policies.
- (d) Compensation for all training and instruction on an employee's working day or day off will be at the employee's regular rate of pay. An employee will not be trained or reinstructed on their day off unless mutually agreed upon by the employee and Employer. Compensation for training will be paid the week following said training.

13.09 Reports - Accident and Incident:

- (a) Operators shall be allowed \$3.00 for making out accident reports and written statements of personal injuries and property damage. When the damage is only to Employer property and it is shown to be the fault of the employee, such time will not be paid.
- (b) An operator requested by a supervisor to make out an incident report on a form provided by the Employer will be paid \$1.00 per report.

13.10 Missouts:

- (a) A missout shall be defined as a failure to report for work, or a failure to report for work by the designated starting time. Repeated missouts shall subject an employee to discipline.
- (b) Operators reporting that they are sick and unable to work thirty minutes or more before their designated reporting time will not be charged with a missout.
 - (1) An operator may call within thirty (30) minutes of their scheduled report time to allow for a five (5) minute grace period to report for work. Employees will be allowed to use this grace period five (5) times within a rolling twelve (12) month period. Any call-in incident after five (5) times within a rolling twelve (12) month period or reporting after the five (5) minute grace period will be considered a miss out.
- (c) If an operator has a missout, the operator shall call the Employer to determine if they will be required to report for work. If the Employer tells the operator to report for work, or the operator reports for work within 15 minutes of their report time, the Employer will assign the operator work or place them on hold, in which case the operator will receive their guarantee for the day. The Employer may also require the operator to make one more show-up for which the operator will be paid. If the operator is told not to report or shows up more than 15 minutes late from their report time, the employee shall not be entitled to a daily guarantee.
- (d) Operators who missout for assigned extra work more than once in a consecutive period for 10 days during which the employee is scheduled to operate said extra work, may be removed from this extra work for the duration of the sign-up. The extra work will be put up for bid.
- (e) When operators who are to make reliefs at places other than the garage are unable to reach relief points, they shall notify the dispatcher or official in charge of their inability and reason (30) minutes before relief time. In cases where operators who are due to take a bus from garage in the afternoon are unable to reach the garage on account of sickness, such operators shall notify official in charge (30) minutes or more before the report time. Such notices shall be made in person, by messenger or by telephone. In cases where buses are delayed by accident or blockade so that operators necessarily arriving on the same cannot reach their places of reporting on time, no miss-out shall be charged against them and they shall be allowed to take their runs at the first opportunity at regular relief points.
- (f) Miss-outs shall be classified as a level (e) violation.

13.11 Work Assignments:

(a) Regular and extra operators will be allowed by the dispatcher or official in charge to be excused from work when extra operators are available if the service of the Employer will not be interfered with and when it can be shown that an extra operator taking a regular operator's place can also do any other extra or tripper work that may be required of him or her that day.

- (b) (1) If an extra list operator catches a run on a show-up and the run is being worked by the regular operator, the extra list operator will be put back on hold in sequence and the regular operator will work the run.
 - (2) If an extra list operator is assigned work on the list on the previous day and the work is filled by the regular operator, the regular operator shall perform the work in question and the extra list operator will be put back on hold and be worked within the times of the assigned work, unless agreeable by mutual consent. The pay for this extra list operator will be equal to the pay of the previously assigned work or equal to pay for what the extra list operator actually worked, whichever is greater.
- (c) In the event an operator is required to work past the time that would not allow working the next day's assignment due to not having the required eight (8) hours off, said operator will be assigned the first available work open outside the required eight (8) hours off. An operator will not be required to accept an assignment until they have had nine (9) hours off.

13.12 Day Off Book

The following procedure should be followed when you are waiting to sign the "Day-Off Book":

- 1. To insure that there will be no misunderstanding regarding your position in the sequence that you come in to wait to sign the "Day-Off Book", when you first come in to wait request the dispatcher to make available a sheet so you may sign (no printing please) your name and opposite your name put the time you signed.
- 2. Once you have signed in, you will be required to be physically on the property inside the building within the drivers' room area or designated smoking area - so that if you are called to confirm your presence, you can hear and respond. An exception to the above would be in the case of an emergency and the operator agreed to make a shift, etc., for the dispatcher, then that individual's absence from the drivers' area or designated smoking area could be easily proven as the time out and time back would be recorded for pay purposes.
 - (a) An open book shall be established at the station supervisor's office for the sole purpose of allowing operators to sign for a day or days, or parts of runs they wish to be absent, and the first six (6) employees registered on Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday, first five (5) employees registered on Monday and Friday, first four (4) employees registered on Saturday and first three (3) employees registered on Sunday for a particular day or days, or parts of runs, shall have the first preference.
 - (b) It is understood, however, that operators off on previous Sunday, Saturday or same previous weekday, with name on book shall not be off the following Sunday, Saturday or following weekday until all who have their names on the book and have not been off the previous Sunday, Saturday or same previous weekday have been taken care of.

- (c) Employees registered in this book must sign in person not more than ten (10) days from twelve (12) o'clock midnight ahead of any day they desire to be absent, and shall place the date opposite the name on the book at the time application for leave of absence is made. This shall also apply to Christmas Eve and Christmas Day, New Year's Eve and New Year's Day, and State Fair week.
- (d) The first five (5) operators who have their names in the book for any particular day or parts of runs, will be off without question on that day.
 - (1) The maximum number of operators to be permitted absent through signing the book is five (5). If, however, one of the five operators crosses their name off the book and there is a sixth (6th) operator who has signed the book, the sixth operator shall have the book-off day. The above must take effect by 10:00 a.m. It is the responsibility of the sixth operator who moves up to the fifth position to call the dispatcher and check if they got the book-off day. If the operator does not call, the dispatcher will automatically mark them off.
 - (2) When the sixth operator is moved up to the fifth slot and the new fifth operator would have otherwise worked a late Syracuse University shuttle run, then the dispatcher may break up the runs and select replacement driver(s), full-time and part-time, at their discretion. One-day absences for operators assigned to late shuttle runs shall be filled in the same manner.
- (e) Book off days are earned November 1st each year. There is an annual limit of eight days per employee or sixteen partial days per employee under the signing off privileges. For the purpose of computing remaining book off privileges, two partial days shall equal one full day. An operator who signs the book but does not use the benefit will not be charged under this section.
- (f) An operator may use the following earned day(s) for a half day paid book-off day. The use of these days will count toward the maximum limit set forth in 13.12(e).
 - (1) Up to five (5) Floating holidays (8 hours pay) can be used in half day increments.
- (g) The vacation days set forth above will be paid in accordance with 9.04(b)(4).
- (h) The book will close at 10:00 am on the day previous to the desired day off.
- (i) Cancellation of a Bid, etc.

If after you have signed your name on a bid for a book-off day and you decide that you do not want the particular bid, the following procedure will apply.

(1) Do not cross your name off yourself.

- (2) Inform the dispatcher on duty that you wish to have your name crossed off from the bid(s) and/or "Day-Off Book", etc. To insure that there is no mix up, it would be best to either call on the tape phone, or leave a signed note with the dispatcher designating exactly what you want crossed off.
- (3) The dispatcher will then cross your name off and initial same.

13.13 Uniforms:

New hires will receive 5 shirts and 5 pants, 1 coat and 1 hat or cap at time of hire. January 1st of each year the company will provide a \$325.00 uniform credit for full-time operators to purchase required uniforms. If the employee exceeds \$325.00 uniform credit, the employee is responsible for the overage at time of purchase. Shoes can be purchased from the company's contracted vendor (Driver committee will select shoes to be purchased).

Uniform allowances will be reset every January 1st. If a full-time employee is hired after January 1, 2023, the yearly uniform allowance will be pro-rated from date of hire.

The company will supply one (1) coat (Spring or Winter), scarf, and winter hat or cap every five (5) years.

13.14 Work Force Reduction

- (a) In the event it becomes necessary to initiate a layoff due to line service reductions and or reductions to existing or future service contracts, the following procedure for protecting bargaining unit jobs shall apply. The Company shall determine the order/combination of these procedures from the options below.
 - (1) The Company will make up to 75% of the contracted Peace work available to the bargaining unit employees depending upon the number of potential layoffs involved.
 - (2) The company may offer a voluntary early retirement incentive and this incentive will be offered in order of seniority (Highest to Lowest). The type of incentive and the total number offered will be determined by the Company. The employees will have the sole option to accept or decline the incentive. If not enough employees accept the incentive and a need for further reduction remains, the Company will revert to number one (1) above.
 - (3) If at some point in the future any part of the canceled or reduced work above is restored, the company reserves the right to reclaim the sub-contracted work that was offered to the Union workforce.
- (b) In the event that the Syracuse University shuttle service contract is canceled or reduced by greater than 50% of the scheduled service, the following procedure will apply after the above actions noted in section 13.14 (a)(1) & (a)(2) have taken place:
 - (1) The Company will investigate and determine if any additional sub-contracted Specialized Transportation work may be made available and assigned to the

Union workforce. Assignment of any sub-contracted work to the Union workforce is contingent on the Company obtaining the necessary equipment. The Company will make every effort to obtain the necessary equipment in an expeditious and responsible manner.

- (2) The amount of work that will be made available will be at the sole discretion of the Company and could take up to ninety (90) days from that last service day due to purchasing of vehicles, creation of runs and notification to current sub-contractors.
- (3) If at some point in the future any part of the canceled or reduced work above is restored, the company reserves the right to reclaim the sub-contracted work that was offered to the Union workforce.
- (c) Employees who are laid off from the full-time roster by seniority (Lowest to Highest) at any subsidiary (Cayuga, Oswego, Onondaga) will be moved to a part time status and allowed to work up to 30 hours a week and will be able to sign-up for work before retirees and current part-time employees at the beginning of a sign-up and will be covered under article 25 of the Collective Bargaining Agreement. Employees who are laid off will not be allowed to bump another employee at any other subsidiary (Cayuga, Oswego, Onondaga) operated by the Company that is covered by this agreement.
 - If there is a callback, it will be in order of seniority (Highest to Lowest) starting with the most senior person and anyone interested in returning must keep their contact information current with the Company in order to be considered.
- (d) For employees that are laid off in accordance with section © above, the Company will pay the premium for their COBRA healthcare benefit for the first three months of their layoff. The employee will be responsible for their normal weekly healthcare contribution. In order to qualify for the three (3) months of paid healthcare COBRA, the employee must maintain an active part time status with the Company and work an average of twenty (20) hours per week during this time period.

ARTICLE XIV

SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR REGULAR OPERATORS.

14.01 Hours of Labor

- (a) The workday for all regular operators will be on the basis of eight (8) hours daily, five (5) days per week. At least eighty-five (85) percent of the runs will have consecutive days off.
- (b) All runs with platform time of seven (7) hours and but less than eight (8) hours will have the report time used to fill in any time under eight (8) hours, but not to exceed eight (8) hours. Any time still remaining under eight (8) hours will be paid at the straight time rate.

(1) Full-Time Operator Night Premium

A night premium shall be paid to full-time operators for their entire run if their run ends after 6:30pm. This premium applies to the operators regular signed runs, extra list operators assigned night work on a daily basis after 1:00pm report time, and PM extra list slots that the company puts up for bid and assigned night runs from the day off list. This premium does not apply to any part-time work, trippers, overtime, or special events (Dome, State Fair).

The full-time operator night premium is paid Monday through Friday.

Night Premium - \$2.00 per hour

(2) Full-Time Operator Weekend Premium

A weekend premium shall be paid to full-time operators for each hour worked on Saturday (the first scheduled run, on Saturday morning) and ending on Sunday (the last scheduled run returning to the garage on Sunday evening into Monday morning). This premium applies to the operators regular signed runs, extra list operators assigned work on a daily basis, and extra list slots that the company puts up for bid and assigned runs from the day off list. This premium does not apply to any part-time work, trippers, overtime, or special events (Dome, State Fair).

Weekend Premium - \$2.00 per hour

- (c) Modifications or changes in a route and/or schedule will be made at the Employer's request. Said modifications or changes will not extend the spread time of the run by more than 10 minutes. Operators will be notified of such changes.
- (d) (1) At least 45% of all scheduled runs, including Call-A-Bus and the S.U. Shuttle, will be completed in 10 ½ hours and in no case is a scheduled run to have outside time in excess of thirteen (13) hours. Operators having scheduled runs with outside time on the schedule exceeding ten and one-half (10 ½) hours shall receive compensation at the rate of time and one-half for such outside time exceeding ten and one-half (10 ½) hours.
 - (2) If the Company cannot meet the contractual requirements for straights due to a change in the operation of Call-A-Bus and/or the University Shuttle, the parties agree to reopen this section for negotiations.
 - (3) All additional work created that may become available before or during a sign-up and is outside the contractual obligations must be mutually agreed upon between the Company and the Union. The quantity of work and hours of operation will be reviewed during this process.
- (e) All runs that come into the garage and go on again downtown or visa-versa shall have at least one-half hour off. In the event a hardship occurs, every effort will be made to adjust the same.
- (f) All schedules shall be made with a minimum allowance of 30 minutes for meals. If, on account of delays, the meal is interfered with, the dispatcher will provide suitable time for meals on subsequent trips with no loss of time or penalty. No portion of a

run containing 5 ¾ hours continuous platform time will be scheduled without a meal relief.

- (g) Operators taking regular scheduled buses from the garage shall be required to report ten (10) minutes before starting time to see that their buses are properly equipped and for the same shall receive ten (10) minutes time at the regular straight time rate and in no event will reporting time be used in computing overtime.
- (h) Reporting time shall be considered as assigned work and shall be part of the spread time of the run.
- (i) Operators relieving on the road shall be required to report five (5) minutes ahead of time and for the same shall receive five (5) minutes report time for each relief.
- (j) Operators who are scheduled to go to and from the garage for a relief in downtown shall be paid eight (8) minutes. Operators on the S.U. Shuttle who are scheduled to or from the garage for a relief at the University Hill will be paid twenty-five (25) minutes travel time each way. In addition, those operators who are scheduled to go to or from the garage for relief other than in downtown or to or from the garage for relief other than in downtown or on the University Hill, will be paid the additional scheduled running time to that point.
- (k) All Syracuse University runs will make reliefs at the garage. Drivers will keep the same bus throughout the day and will receive five (5) minutes report for all second and third parts of such runs. In cases where the operator is not assigned the same bus for their second or third parts, the operator will receive ten (10) minutes report for that pull-out and will report to the window ten (10) minutes prior to the scheduled pull-out time.
- (I) In case of delay, operators on buses shall be paid until relieved at regular relief points. Operators who have reported to relieve these buses shall be paid for their time at the regular rate.
- (m) Cancellation of a Portion of a Run:

Operators who are sitting out their time due to a cancellation of a portion of a run will perform work as assigned by the Operations Department. This work may include duties such as shifts, turnbacks, and trippers.

- (1) The operators who are "sitting out" their time will be used in inverse order of seniority.
- (2) In assigning work on subsequent days, Centro will start with the employee with lowest seniority who on the previous day did not receive work, and so on through the list.
- (3) Operators used in accordance with above will receive no extra pay for the time worked during the portion of their run that was canceled.

- (4) It is understood that if all available operators are used and an emergency situation exists, an operator may be requested to work (for a reasonable period of time) until relieved.
- (5) It is understood that the above does not apply to University Shuttle runs.
- (n) The Company agrees to investigate the possibility of creating some driver runs which are composed of four ten-hour workdays.

14.02 Overtime:

- (a) Regular operators shall not be required to work overtime unless it becomes necessary by reason of the failure of relief to appear and in this instance the official in charge shall so arrange that not more than one (1) round trip shall be required. Overtime rate shall be paid when it occurs at the end of the operator's day's work when the regular operator has fully completed all parts of their regular run, has signed in the book for part of their run off, or their relief has been assigned to other work by the Employer.
- (b) Subject to the foregoing provisions, regular operators who are assigned to or held for extra work in addition to their scheduled run shall be paid at the overtime rate for the actual overtime worked and for the time held, except charter work which will be paid at the straight time rate.
- (c) Where no extra operators are available and regular reliefs are taken to do their work, thereby compelling regular operators to continue on their runs, said regular operators shall be paid at the overtime rate for extra work and shall not be required to work in excess of one (1) round trip.
- (d) Regular operators working in addition to their regular runs on holidays shall receive time and one-half for all time worked in addition to the paid holiday time, except charter work which will be paid at the straight time rate.
- (e) When Sunday schedules are operated on holidays, any extra time or trips added to such schedule shall be paid at the overtime rate.
 - NOTE: Also see Article XIII, Section 4 of this contract.
- (f) Overtime Nothing contained in this agreement shall be interpreted as requiring duplication or pyramiding overtime payment involving the same hours of labor as it relates to the overtime provisions of the F.L.S.A.
- 14.03 Syracuse University runs shall be subject to change or cancelation based upon service requirements of Syracuse University. In the event of such runs being canceled for any reason, operators will revert to the extra list and the following rules under Article XV. All operators will maintain their days off based on the Syracuse University run they are working prior to the service change/cancelation
 All Syracuse University operators will work between the hours of their run the week of Thanksgiving and the week of Spring break. All Syracuse University operators will be eligible to sign on hold downs during each week. The late SU operators will not report any earlier than 3:00 P.M., unless mutually agreed upon.

14.04 Syracuse University has adopted a change in starting time for classes beginning, January 2005. If said changes go into effect, the Company will be allowed to use an additional six (6) part time operators above the 10% limit (exclusively on these SU trippers) while Syracuse University is in session.

ARTICLE XV

SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR EXTRA OPERATORS

NOTE: When extra operators are working regular runs daily, on hold down or bid, they are governed by provisions outlined in Article XIV (Regular Operators) of this contract.

15.01 Hours of Labor

- (a) All extra operators will be guaranteed eight (8) hours daily. If an extra operator works more than eight (8) hours, the portion over eight (8) hours will not count towards any other day's guarantee. It is understood, however, that extra operators to receive this minimum guarantee, shall report on time twice daily between the hours of 4:00 am and 6:00 pm, if requested. Operators failing to so report shall forfeit their guarantee for that day. Extra operators held for show-up will be paid for all time held at their straight time rate except as stipulated in 15.02.
- (b) Extra operators who are required to report for work after 6:00 pm shall receive pay until completion of such work or until released from show-up and shall be paid for at least one (1) hour.
- (c) No extra operator shall be compelled to work after a thirteen (13) hour spread unless the operator is working pieces of work and then shall not be compelled to work after twelve (12) hours spread unless he so desires.
- (d) Two non-rotating 4:00pm shows will be added to the extra list for the fall and spring sign-up period. Each position will be responsible to cover any late Syracuse University work that becomes available for any reason (vacations, sick, etc.). If there is no available late Syracuse University work, these positions will operate under the provisions set forth in this article with the exception of daily rotation on the extra list. Late Syracuse University work is defined as Syracuse University work with an ending time after 2:00am. These shows cannot be assigned regular late runs in advance while Syracuse University is in session. At any time Syracuse University is not in session during these sign-up periods, they may be brought in no earlier than 3:00pm to cover open runs.

These positions will work Monday through Friday and will have Saturday, Sunday and Holidays off.

Any late Syracuse University runs or one (1) show on Saturdays will be covered off the regular extra list and on Sundays using part-time operators working the extra list, and if necessary, the full-time day off list. When Syracuse University shuttle commences full operation one (1) week prior to the beginning of the September sign-up, operators who signed for the two (2) 4:00 P.M. shows will begin their shifts one (1) week prior to the effective date of the sign-up. Notice of this will be posted as part of the September sign-up. The work vacated will be put up for bid if necessary and take effect the same day and Syracuse University shuttle commences.

15.02 Overtime - Extra List Operators:

- (a) Extra operators not receiving a break shall receive the overtime rate for all time over nine (9) hours daily.
- (b) Extra operators receiving a break who work in excess to ten and one-half (10 ½) hours spread will receive overtime for all time in excess of the 10 ½ hours spread.
 - i. In 15.02(a) and (b) above, holding time will be counted as platform (driving time).
- (c) Extra operators assigned to operate a scheduled run will be paid in accordance with the overtime provision(s) for regular operators.
 - ii. NOTE: Also see Article XIII Section 4 and Article XIV Section 2 of this contract.
- (d) Extra list operators break time will not be issued any earlier than four (4) hours from their initial report time, unless mutually agreed upon.

15.03 Extra List Operation:

- (a) The Employer agrees to maintain an extra list adequate to properly take care of the service.
- (b) The extra list will be closed at 10:00 am and posted day to day, Monday through Sunday, by 1:00 pm, setting forth the following day's work. It is understood there can be no changes made to the extra list after 6:00 pm, unless it becomes necessary due to an operator not having the required eight hours off as outlined in 13.12(c).
- (c) Starting a new sign-up, when the first day's list is posted, all operators will be listed in order of seniority regardless of the position held the previous sign-up.
- (d) In assigning work to extra list operators, the run finishing first shall be given to the first operator marked up and so on down the list. Any work other than runs shall be marked up with the earliest report time coming first and so on down the list in the proper sequence.
- (e) If the outside spread time factor should go over the prescribed spread of the first available show-up operator, the operator shall be required to accept said run and will work the first half only then to be put on hold. It is understood said operator shall have at least thirty (30) minutes off for lunch, will not lose their guarantee for the day, and will rotate on the extra list. The first available show-up operator will have the option to accept the entire run.

- (f) Extra list operators shall be assigned work on a first in, first out basis in proper sequence. An operator assigned work will not receive another assigned job until all other available operators who have not received work have been assigned work. However, it is understood operators on a second show will be considered as operators who have not received work as far as pieces of work are concerned. It is understood that an operator on a Miss-out - Late Show shall not be assigned work until all other available operators are assigned work.
- (g) An operator scheduled to work in sequence on a junk day may refuse to work over their 12-hour spread. Said operator refusing shall remain in sequence to work assigned work within their 12-hour spread. If no other operators are available at the time the work is given out, said operator will be required to take the work and will be relieved, if requested, as soon as possible so as not to go over the 12-hour spread as specified in 15.01(d).
- (h) Show-up: When an operator reports for work, the operator shall be expected to perform the work assigned and remain on duty until released by the service supervisor, in accordance with the provisions of this agreement.
- (i) An operator on a show-up who is available for work at the time a run is due to be out and is given said run late (past the reports) shall be paid for the complete run.
- (j) An operator who is not available for work when a run is due out shall be paid for the time worked and rotate on the extra list.
- (k) Operators assigned the previous day to a run or a charter available to the extra list to run eight (8) hours or more shall drop on the extra list, all other operators shall rotate on the extra list. It is understood that if an operator receives an eight (8) hour charter that is canceled, or returns prior to the closing of the extra list, said operator shall also rotate.
- (I) An operator working a tripper, etc. or on show-up and performs work shall not be excluded from working a run, provided it is not scheduled over the thirteen (13) hour spread and said operator is in sequence to be given the run.
- (m) An extra list operator assigned a run, but not completing the run shall be considered an operator who has received a run, if by their own action, the run was not completed.
- (n) If you request a late show and you are marked up for a run or an eight (8) hour charter, your position is then governed by the run or eight (8) hour charter you would have received, therefore, you would drop on the list.
- (o) An extra list operator's position on the extra list who signed the day-off book shall be determined by what the operator would have received on the day or days the operator has signed off for.
- (p) Extra list operators who are off sick shall retain their position on the extra list, and on their return to work their position shall be determined by what they would have received the day previous to their return to work.

- (q) If an operator requests a change in work assignment (which is granted) to a later time than originally assigned, your position on the list is then governed by what the operator one below you receives.
- (r) An operator serving time at the bottom of the list and on show-up shall not be called in earlier than their assigned show-up time until all extra list operators on a show-up are called in sequence to come in earlier than their assigned show-up time.
- (s) Regular or extra operators serving time at the foot of the extra list shall receive the minimum guarantee. The service supervisor will not assign work to other employees at time and one-half when they have been notified that an employee is or will be serving time on the foot of the extra list and available for work.
- (t) Operators out of work due to sickness for five (5) days or more will drop off the extra list. When said operator returns to work their name will be added to the bottom of the extra list prior to the rotation of the extra list.
- (u) An operator who is marked up for a run and cannot work the assignment due to not having the required eight (8) hours off, and who works a junk day in lieu of the run assigned, shall rotate on the extra list.
- (v) An operator on a show-up who is assigned a run, or an eight (8) hour charter shall rotate on the following day's list.
- (w) An extra list operator who is on show-up who calls in sick in accordance with the contract, shall rotate on the following day's list. An operator calling in sick that is not in accordance with the contract shall drop on the following day's list.

ARTICLE XVI

SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR MECHANICAL AND MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT EMPLOYEES

16.01 Hours of Labor:

- (a) The work week for all garage, shop and maintenance employees will be on the basis of eight (8) hours daily, five (5) days per week. The overtime rate shall be paid after 40 hours worked per week in conjunction with the overtime provisions in 16.03. All employees on the first shift will have consecutive days off. Where ever possible, employees on the second and third shifts will have consecutive days off and it is not necessary to pay overtime to cover absences and complete necessary work to be performed.
- (b) For the duration of this contract, there will be no changes in the first shift working schedule insofar as split shift schedules are concerned. The Employer will be allowed to vary the scheduled hours of first shift employees as follows: a maximum of six (6) employees for a maximum variance of two (2) hours from first shift schedule provided forty-eight (48) hours' notice is given. Night bonus will be paid for hours worked during that portion of shift.

(c) Shift schedules will be as follows:

Early Shift	5:00 A.M	1:30 P.M.
First shift	7:00 A.M	3:30 P.M.
Second shift	3:00 P.M	11:30 P.M.
Third shift	5:00 P.M -	1:30 A.M.
	7:00 P.M	3:30 A.M.
	11:00 P.M	7:30 A.M.

- (d) The major portion of all maintenance work, excluding work performed by servicers (to a maximum of 5), will be performed on the first shift.
 - (1) Maintenance department employees required to perform operation department work, during their normal work shift, on an emergency basis, shall be paid their maintenance department overtime rate while performing said operation department work.
- (e) If it becomes necessary to rearrange work hours on either the second or third shift from the present schedule, work hours and shift hours will be bid according to seniority. Provided that employees affected will be given one (1) week's notice of such change and the change will continue for two (2) weeks or more except in emergency cases which do not exceed two (2) weeks.
 - (1) Second shift running repair Mechanics and Servicers are required to cover Saturday and Sunday shifts according to seniority and qualifications.
 - (2) Running repair Mechanics and Servicers will cover holidays according to seniority and qualifications (includes all shifts).
 - (3) The Employer agrees to provide an adequate training program to help qualify employees within six (6) months of bid awards, transfers, employment for all job classifications as well as obtaining their CDL/Towing license. Failure to meet requirements and/or qualifications may result in demotion (only if a position is available) or termination.
 - a. CDL B or A Permit New employees are required to obtain their CDL B or A Permit within 60 days of date of hire for their current position.
 - b. Employees will be required to attend necessary training once they have their permit to meet license qualifications and will be in possession of required licenses within six (6) months of bid awards, transfers or employment.
 - c. Employees may be required to work up to four (4) hours of overtime on their regular days of work in order to obtain their required CDL license(s). Work availability is at management's discretion.
- (f) Five (5) minutes shall be allowed at noon hour and night for the purpose of washing up and making out the necessary time cards.
- (g) All employees working on the second and third shifts will be allowed to bid for their days off on May 1st and November 1st of each year according to the work schedule submitted by the Employer in accordance with first, class of work and second, in accordance with mechanical department seniority.

- (h) A miss-out shall be defined as a failure to report for work, or a failure to report for work by the designated starting time. Repeated miss-outs shall subject an employee to discipline.
- (i) Maintenance employees reporting that they are sick and unable to work thirty (30) minutes or more before their designated reporting time will not be charged with a miss-out.
- (j) If an employee has a miss-out, the Company will have the option of having the employee work the rest of their shift.
- (k) An employee may call within thirty (30) minutes of their scheduled report time to allow for a fifteen (15) minute grace period to report for work. Employees will be allowed to use this grace period five (5) times within a rolling twelve (12) month period. Any call-in incident after this will be considered a miss-out as described in 16.01(h)(l).
- (I) Miss-outs shall be classified as a level (e) violation.

16.02 (a) The following rate schedules will become effective during the term of this agreement:

	04/01/2024	04/01/2025	04/01/2026
First Class Mechanic	\$32.02	\$33.14	\$34.30
Mechanic	\$31.20	\$32.29	\$33.42
Helper	\$30.41	\$31.47	\$32.57
Helper Trainee	\$28.98	\$30.00	\$31.05
Facilities Technician	\$32.02	\$33.14	\$34.30
Servicer	\$23.66	\$24.49	\$25.35
Steam Jenny Oper.	\$27.81	\$28.79	\$29.79
Board Person	\$27.81	\$28.79	\$29.79
Oil Analyzer	\$24.76	\$25.62	\$26.52

Longevity Premium Pay

Full Time Maintenance employees will receive a \$0.50 per hour premium every five (5) years starting at ten (10) years of service. The premium will be added to your wage on the first Monday of the next month after the employee's seniority date.

- (1) Working Foreman will receive \$3.00 an hour above their current pay rate (Premium pay)
- (2) Backup Working Foreman and Lead Servicer will receive \$1.50 above their current pay rate (Premium pay).
- (3) Servicers assigned to work the weekend board will receive Board Person rate for those hours worked.

(b) Servicer hired after June 30, 1999, the starting rate for (c) above will be as follows:

```
0 - 3 months
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 months
12 - 18 months
18 - 24 months
After 24 months
$2.00 less than current rate
$1.50 less than current rate
$1.00 less than current rate
$0.50 less than current rate
Top Rate is Achieved
```

(c) A night premium shall be paid to all maintenance employees working outside of the early shift and the first shift hours stated in 16.01(c). A night premium is paid Monday through Friday for second and third shifts.

Night Shift Premium - \$2.00

(1) A weekend premium shall be paid to all maintenance employees for any hours worked starting at 7:00am on Saturday and ending at 5:00am on Monday.

Weekend Premium - \$2.00

- (d) Facilities Technician must pass an appropriate written, oral, or hands-on test or a combination of the same, determined by management.
 - (1) Underground Storage Tank Certification -Under federal and state law, Facilities Technicians must be trained in how to keep underground storage tanks (UST) in compliance with regulatory requirements. This was a 2016 DEC requirement. Each facilities technician is a Class B Operator, which are individuals who have day-to-day responsibility for implementing the applicable requirements. For each facilities technician to obtain a certification, they need to study a manual, attend a C&S study guide, and take an online test.

Effective April 2, 2018, any Field technician assigned to Building and Grounds will receive an additional 0.25 per hour if they are certified and maintain this certification when required.

(e) ASE – Master Mechanic Wage

First class mechanics are eligible to take transit bus Automotive Service Excellence (ASE) certified test(s) to become ASE certified in their class of work. Upon successful certification of the appropriate test(s), the employee will be entitled to a \$4.00 per hour premium above first class pay. ASE conducts testing two times per year in May and November. Proper documentation from ASE must be given to Management to verify successful completion of the test(s). Any fees associated with this ASE certification testing will be the responsibility of the employer, provided the employee obtains and passes certification test(s) associated with their class of work.

(1) Management shall determine what ASE tests are appropriate for each class of work. In some instances, there may not be an appropriate test(s) for a particular class of work as the Company has no control over what ASE test(s) have been or are going to be developed for transit buses.

- (2) A list of appropriate test(s) for each class of work, should they exist, will be available from Management.
- (3) Each passing ASE will receive \$1.00 per hour, up to four (4) successful passing tests for a maximum of a \$4.00 premium..
- (4) Each certification is good for five (5) years. It is the responsibility of each employee to maintain (re-certify) their own certifications.
- (5) Certification pay shall begin the first pay period following the test date assuming the appropriate certificates are turned into the company.
- (6) The certification pay does not increase with any base hourly wage adjustment, but remains a "premium over base wage" increase.
- (7) ASE certification shall be treated as shift differential pay and shall apply to the base pay on all hours worked including floating holidays, vacations, national holidays, etc.
- (8) There will be a thirty (30) day grace period for the renewal upon expiration of each test. Failure to provide updated information will result in removal of the premium pay.
- (9) Employees who transfer to a different class of work will be required to complete the necessary certifications in the new class of work in order to maintain the premium pay. There will be a six month grace period for such transfers.

16.03 Overtime:

- (a) The Employer will try to distribute overtime work as evenly as possible according to:
 - 1. Classification
 - 2. Qualification
 - 3. Availability.
- (b) Overtime will be kept in the department with employees in that department provided the employee is available and qualified.
- (c) The Employer agrees to maintain a list of Mechanical Department employees who desire to work overtime when overtime is available.
- (d) Supervisor's record of overtime hours worked will be open to inspection by a Union Representative upon request.
- (e) Employees not scheduled to work on a holiday will be paid at time and one-half for all work performed on the holiday.
- (f) Employees required to work on their day off shall be paid the overtime rate. If an employee has not worked a full week and requests to be allowed to work on their day off and the Employer agrees, or if the Employer requests an employee to work on their day off and the employee agrees, they will be paid straight time.

- (g) When Mechanical Department or Building Maintenance Department employees are called from their homes for emergency work, they shall be paid at the overtime rate and at no time shall this be less than five (5) hours.
 - Emergency work does not include snow removal or scheduled work. Emergency is defined as an unexpected and sudden event that must be dealt with immediately.
- (h) All towing will be paid a half (1/2) time premium based upon the maintenance employees wage regardless of straight time or overtime hours worked.
- (i) When all bus service is discontinued due to emergency storm conditions, an employee who is requested to remain on the Employer property over and above their regular scheduled day of work will be paid at the rate of time and one-half.
- (j) On all road calls, any employee below mechanics' helper classification who goes on a road call will be paid the mechanics' helper rate.
- (k) Two employees will be provided to go on road calls.
- (I) All national holidays, floating holidays, jury duty, paid funeral leave and Union business will be credited as time worked toward a forty (40) hour work week for the purposes of calculating overtime. This language does not apply if the paid time listed above falls on an employees scheduled day off for the purpose of calculating overtime.
 - (1) If a national holiday falls on an employee's day off, the employee can float the holiday to use in the same calendar year. If the employee separates from the Company prior to earning the national holiday the employee will reimburse the company at payout.
- (m) All employees are required to accept available overtime in their department/classification first before accepting any other overtime in another department/classification or general overtime that may also be available during the same time period.
- (n) Maintenance employees can work up to a maximum of a double shift (17 hours) per day.
- (o) Employees who have not attained the status of mechanic helper or higher, will be eligible for entry level overtime outside of their class of work before the general list is used excluding snow removal.
- 16.04 Promotions Transfers Reduction in Forces:
 - (a) Definitions applicable to this section:
 - (1) Promotions: A change to a higher job classification class of work.
 - (2) Job Classifications: Mechanics' Helper, Mechanics' Helper Trainee, Mechanic, First-Class Mechanic, etc.

- (3) Class of Work: Engine and chassis repairing and overhaul, body repairing, electrical work, welding, machinist work, painting, building maintenance work, tire shop, upholsterer, etc.
- (4) General Mechanical Department Seniority: Starting date of latest period of continuous employment in the Mechanical Department.
- (5) Transfer: Assignment to work to another class of work.
- (b) Maintenance Department employees shall be eligible for promotions and job vacancies under the following conditions:
 - (1) The following language applies to entry level positions which are Servicers. This does not apply to bids pertaining to Facilities Technician. All maintenance employees have the right to bid on the Facilities Technician position.
 - a. Servicers may apply to fill a job opening in the next job classification level which is Mechanics' Helper Trainee. This position will be appointed through an interview process by Centro maintenance management. In addition, said employee must have completed a 20 hour prerequisite training program and pass a written test. Employees who have not completed the 20 hour prerequisite training class will not be eligible to bid. Program material will be mutually agreed upon by management and the union.
 - b. After a mandatory twelve (12) month period, Mechanics' Helper Trainees must pass an appropriate written or oral test plus a hands-on test in order to progress to the job classification of Mechanics' Helper. In the event that said employee fails the test, the employee will return to their former position and will not be able to bid on a Mechanics' Helper Trainee position for a (1) year period whereby said employee must also retake the company's perquisite program and pass any required tests. Mechanics' Helper Trainees will train on first shift.
 - c. At the end of the twelve (12) month training period, if conditions are met, the employee shall progress to Mechanics' Helper. Helpers are required to remain Helpers for a minimum of two (2) years at which time said employee will be required to test up to the next job classification level. During this two (2) year period, the employee will continue training in the mechanic program. In the event of a job opening at the next job classification level, and if it is agreed upon the by Union and Company, the employee may bid on said job or request to be tested prior to the expiration of the two (2) year period regardless of department. The position date of a Mechanics' Helper begins upon successful completion of the twelve (12) month training period.
 - d. Employees hired into entry level positions shall begin accruing bidding rights for job openings as soon as they have attained the job classification level of Mechanics' Helper Trainee. Furthermore, department seniority for said Mechanic Helper Trainee will start of

their position date. Position date is defined as the start date as a Mechanic Helper Trainee. An evaluation will be given at twelve (12) months of position date. In the event the Mechanic Helper Trainee does not meet the necessary requirements to advance as a Mechanic Helper, the employee will return to their entry level position with their respective seniority. Entry level employees shall maintain their seniority rights in all other respects such as bidding for vacations and floating holidays. As part of the mechanical department, the Mechanic Helper Trainee will be eligible for their department overtime while working with a Mechanic if approved by Management. However, the Mechanic Helper Trainee will only be eligible for Servicer overtime through the General Overtime list.

Effective November 23, 2018 for the sole purposes of future bidding and shift assignments, time served as an entry level Employee will not accrue for department seniority.

(2) Mechanics are required to remain Mechanics for a two-year period during which time the mechanic must take and pass the appropriate tests determined by management. Employees that wish to be tested for the next qualification level must submit a request to management in writing. A test will be provided within 10 business days from the receipt of the written request. If the employee passes the test, the employee will be paid the day they pass the test and no later than the fifth (5th) business day from the submitted written request.

At the end of the two-year period, if the above conditions are met, the employee shall progress to the next job classification level. In the event of a job opening in the next job classification level, the employee may bid on said job and request to be tested prior to the expiration of the two-year period.

- (3) Job openings biddings procedure.
 - a. All job openings will be posted for bid except confidential and supervisory positions.
 - b. All job openings will be offered to the senior qualified employee; qualifications shall be determined by an appropriate written, oral or hands-on test (or a combination of such tests).
 - c. In the event there is more than one (1) being tested and qualifications are equal, the most senior employee will be offered the job opening.
 - d. The successful bidder for any job opening will be given a six (6) month trial period which the employee must complete to the satisfaction of management.
 - e. If an employee is called in to discuss qualifications for a job vacancy, the employee may have their Union representative present.

- f. After a trial, the Employer will decide whether the employee in question is qualified. Such decision will be subject to the grievance procedure.
- g. The unsuccessful completion of either the written or oral test or the three (3) month trial will prohibit the employee from being requalified for three (3) months. The employee will return to their former position and will be eligible to bid any other job vacancy.
- h. The promotional course map will be:
 - i. Servicers, etc.
 - ii. Board Person Steam Jenny
 - iii. Mechanics' Helper Trainee
 - iv. Mechanics' Helper
 - v. Mechanic
 - vi. First Class Mechanic Facility Technician
- No positions will be filled from the outside until all bidding process and trial period have been completed. If qualified employees are not available, the Employer has the right to fill any position with outside help.
- j. The Employer will furnish an adequate set of tools for a one (1) year period to the employees who are on a trial basis in the Mechanics Helper Trainee classification. After the trial period, the tools will be returned to the Employer.
- k. When an employee is tested for a position or job opening, the results will be made available for review to the employer and the Union representative.
- An employee cannot fill a job vacancy posted at a lower job classification without approval of management. In the event of such approval, the employee shall forfeit their current rate of pay and assume the current rate of the posted job vacancy.
- m. Unless mutually agreed upon, it is understood that employees will not be permitted trials for vacancies outside their class of work.
- n. For all bargaining unit employee bids, the employee shall be notified within ten (10) business days from the time the bid comes down to be tested for the position or awarded the position if applicant is already qualified and does not need to be tested. All awarded bid winners will be moved into awarded position as soon as possible and not to exceed 90 calendar days. Bid winners will receive pay for position upon award date.
- Bidding rights for employees who change their class of work (department) will be based on position date for the sole purpose of shift assignments and scheduled days off. Employees shall, however,

- maintain their seniority rights in all other respects such as bidding for vacations and floating holidays.
- p. The employee shall be provided 10 business days to move into a new position. If mutually agreed upon by the employee and Company, the employee can move sooner.
- (c) Transfers will be governed by the following:
 - (1) All transfers shall be based on General Mechanical Department seniority according to the class of work, provided the employee is qualified.
 - (2) If mutually agreed upon, an employee in good standing may transfer from one class of work to another, provided the employee is qualified.
- (d) Employees will be laid off in the inverse order of General Mechanical Department seniority provided that all job classifications are filled with qualified employees.
 - (1) Employees may use their seniority to bump to a different class of work, provided they are qualified. Qualifications shall be determined by testing.
 - (2) Employees will be recalled on the basis of their job classification, class of work and qualifications in the inverse order of the layoff.
 - (3) First Class Mechanics, Mechanics, and Helpers who are forced to take job classification lower than Helper because of reduction in forces shall be paid at the regular rate according to the job classification they held previously.
- (e) Any work which can be performed by garage employees with equipment that is available in the garage will not be subcontracted except in an emergency.
- 16.05 Substitutions and Temporary Transfers:
 - (a) When employees in garage are substituting for employees in a position paying a higher rate of wages, they shall receive the regular rate of wages for that position while filling same if they are qualified.
 - (b) When employees in garage are substituting for employees in a position paying the same or a lower rate of wages, they shall receive their regular rate while filling same.
 - (c) When a vacancy occurs which extends beyond five (5) weeks, it shall be filled by putting up a temporary bid. Copies of the original bid sheet when posted will be made available to the Union. Also, the name(s) of the bid winners will be made available to the Union upon request.
 - (1) Normal bidding procedures will apply for all temporary bids. Whenever a temporary bid exceeds 6 months, Management and the Union will meet and mutually agree to determine if the bid is still necessary and/or if the bid will become permanent.

- (d) The Employer reserves the right to fill vacancies temporarily with available employees in case of an emergency. Such emergency shall not exceed thirty (30) working days.
- (e) When a servicer or mechanic's helper substitutes in a position which received higher pay, they will receive the higher pay.

16.06 Tool Allowance - Uniform Allowance

- (a) The Employee of the garage, shops and building maintenance departments who are classified as first class mechanics, mechanics, and mechanics' helpers, will furnish their own tools necessary to properly perform various jobs to which they are assigned. The Employer will pay the above named employees, \$150.00 per month tool allowance (\$1,800 total per year).. Payment of the tool allowance will be made on a cumulative basis twice a year on the first pay day in June (for the first 6 months) and the first pay day in December (for the second 6 months) based on allowance accrued by each qualified employee for each preceding 6 month period. Mechanic Trainees who successfully complete the mechanics training program and pass necessary tests will be eligible for up to one (1) year of tool allowance retroactive from their final test date (day they qualify as a Mechanic's Helper). This allowance is not in addition to the normally scheduled tool allowance which is paid in June and December. Amounts are prorated based on time of year an employee qualifies.
 - (1) New employees will be paid a tool allowance retroactively to their hire date at the end of their probationary period.
 - (2) Employees to receive this allowance must be in the service of the Employer six (6) months and have the proper tools to perform jobs assigned to them.
 - (3) Steam Jenny Operator is to receive half (50%) of the tool allowance.
 - (4) Employees not required to furnish tools will not receive tool allowance regardless of classification.
- (b) A deduction will be made from an employee's tool allowance if
 - (1) An employee who does not work any portion of the defined six (6) month intervals (December 1st May 31stor June 1st November 30th) will not be eligible for any tool allowance for that period
 - (2) No deduction will be made while an employee is on vacation or Union business.
- (c) Advance payment for tool allowance for which an employee is qualified will be paid upon request before the employee leaves on vacation.
- (d) The Employer will provide fire and theft insurance in the amount of \$5,000 (\$500 deductible clause) for the tools of garage mechanics which are stored on the Employer's property. Mechanics covered by this insurance must submit an inventory of tools to the Employer and the insurance company.
- (e) Uniform Allowance:
 - The Employer will pay the entire cost of a rental service which furnishes 11 sets of uniforms to shop and garage employees.

(1) The employer will, at the employee's request, pay for the cost for a winter work coat once every five (5) years. Requests will be posted no later than September 1st of the calendar year. Requesting employees will receive a winter work coat as soon as practicable. New hires will be eligible for a winter jacket after the six (6) month probation period.

(f) Safety Shoes:

The Employer requires the use of safety shoes for all Maintenance Department employees and will contribute up to \$200.00 toward their cost to a limit of no more than one (1) pair per year.

(g) The Employer agrees to explore the concept of four (4) ten (10) hour days for the work week.

16.07 Rest Breaks

The Employer will provide a ten (10) minute rest break during each four (4) hour period. No other breaks will be allowed.

An exact schedule of breaks will be posted.

16.08 Locker Rooms

The employees agree to keep the locker rooms neat and clean.

Management has the right to inspect all lockers in the presence of the employee who occupies a locker or a Union representative.

16.09 Shifts and Towing Procedures

At no time will a bus operator be compelled to be towed, except in an emergency. If there is a risk of the bus requiring towing a Maintenance Department employee may make the shift.

- 16.10 The Employer agrees to make every reasonable effort to secure the right to perform warranty work on its property, provided there is adequate training and equipment to perform such work.
- 16.11 The company will make every effort to train employees during their shift while the position of Training Coordinator exists, however, employees may be required to work up to (4) hours of overtime on their regular days of work in order to be trained on new equipment or any equipment pertinent to their class of work.
- 16.12 For the purpose of training employees, employees who are interested in becoming a trainer will submit in writing to management their qualifications for the posted position. Employees must hold a minimum classification of first-class mechanic in order to apply. Trainers are selected and may be discontinued at the discretion of the Employer. The Employer reserves the right to appoint qualified employees as a trainer. The Employer also reserves the right to determine what type of training constitutes the use of a trainer. The Employer agrees to post any available training positions for in house training. Employees appointed as trainers will receive \$1.50 an hour premium.

(a) A Lead Maintenance Trainer will be established to provide year-round training for new employees as well as mentoring employees during non-traditional training times. The Lead Maintenance Trainer will be paid a \$3.00 per hour premium for all hours worked as long as the appointed employee meets all training standards.

This position itself may be discontinued by the Employer upon 30 days' notice to the union. It will be reevaluated when the current appointed employee either leaves the company or is no longer interested in the position. This language does not affect any language in 16.12.

16.13 Employees will be allowed to pre-test for qualifications outside their classification on their own time and at the convenience of the company. This only applies to the written and hands on portion of any test, however the employee must first pass the written portion of the test before the hands-on portion will be administered. Employees may not test for classifications during an open bid and said employee must wait until the bidding process is complete. If passed, pre-qualification is only valid for 2 years. The company reserves the right to change an employee's class of work as according to Article XVI, section 16.04(b)(3)(m).

ARTICLE XVII

CENTRO OF CAYUGA, INC. & CENTRO OF OSWEGO, INC. EXCEPTIONS

17.01 (a) The sections of the agreement effective November 1, 1976, that were exceptions, shall continue as exceptions and remain in effect until changed or left the same by negotiations. The parties of this agreement must specify which provisions are applicable, which must be modified, and which are totally non-applicable to Centro of Cayuga, Inc. and Centro of Oswego, Inc.

The following top rates of pay for Cayuga and Oswego will become effective during the term of this agreement:

	04/01/2024	04/01/2025	04/01/2026
Bus Operator	\$30.00	\$31.05	\$32.14
First Class Mechanic	\$32.02	\$33.14	\$34.30
Mechanic	\$31.20	\$32.29	\$33.42
Servicer	\$26.10	\$27.02	\$27.96

- (1) Working Foreman will receive \$3.00 an hour above their current pay rate (Premium pay)
- (2) Employees filling in for the Working Foreman when absent and assuming the duties of the Working Foreman shall be paid a \$3.00 per hour premium rate for the days that they are filling in as the Working Foreman.

Refer to section 8.04(a)(b) for progression table for Bus Operators

Longevity Premium Pay

Full Time Operators and Maintenance employees will receive a \$0.50 per hour premium every five (5) years starting at ten (10) years of service. The premium will be added to your wage on the first Monday of the next month after the employee's seniority date.

Retiree Part time Longevity

Full time operators who retire after December 17, 2021, and elect to remain working part time for the employer will be paid the operator rate, including longevity pay at which they retire. The part time retired operator will be eligible for the contractual pay increase under the bus operator's wages. However, they will not continue to receive longevity increases in the future. This rate of pay will be effective at the signing of this agreement (April 29, 2024) and not subject to retroactive pay.

Full time employees who retired prior to December 17, 2021, and elected to remain working and are currently working part time for the employer will receive the longevity pay at which it would be at their time of retirement. However, they will not continue to receive longevity increases in the future. This rate of pay will be effective at the signing of this agreement (April 29, 2024) and not subject to retroactive pay.

- (b) Progression rate for new hires (part-time) in Oswego and Cayuga will be the same as for full-time employees on those properties.
- (c) For Servicer, the starting rate for above will be as follows:

0 - 3 months
3 - 6 months
6 - 12 months
12 - 18 months
18 - 24 months
After 24 months
\$2.00 less than current rate
\$1.50 less than current rate
\$1.25 less than current rate
\$0.60 less than current rate

Refer to section 16.02(c) for progression table for Part Time Servicer.

(d) A weekend premium shall be paid to operators for each hour worked on Saturday (the first scheduled run on Saturday morning) and ending on Sunday (the last scheduled run returning to the garage on Sunday evening into Monday morning). This premium applies to the operators regular signed runs, extra list operators assigned work on a daily basis, and extra list slots that the company puts up for bid and assigned runs from the day off list. This premium applies to full runs not to any part-time work, trippers, overtime, or special events (Dome, State Fair).

Weekend Premium - \$2.00

17.02 General Provisions - Cayuga and Oswego:

(a) When the Employer has information that a run will be open for five (5) days or more due to sickness or for any other reason, the run shall be posted for bid immediately for a period of five (5) days as a hold down and shall remain posted for bid until Friday at 4:00 pm and said run to be taken on the first day of the following work week. It is understood that this is restricted to two (2) movements only.

- (b) All available full-time employees shall have preference and be used for straight time work before part-time employees are utilized.
- (c) When a full-time operator's position becomes vacant on a permanent basis, or additional operators are hired for full-time employment, qualified part-time employees shall be asked in order of seniority if they desire to work full-time before any outside applications are considered.
 - (1) At Centro of Cayuga, Inc. and Centro of Oswego, Inc. facility, the following process will define the progression of part-time operators to full-time status.

Part-time operators who work a minimum of fifteen (15) hours per month, for eight (8) of the previous twelve (12) months, will be eligible for promotion to full-time status when vacancies occur.

In the event that a full-time position becomes open and no part time operators have qualified as above due to insufficient hours worked, the criteria shall be reduced to fifteen (15) hours worked during seven (7) of the previous twelve (12) months, and so on until an operator is selected to fill the vacancy.

The above requirements for hours worked do not apply to employees hired before July 1, 1998.

(d) In the event that a vacancy occurs by reason that a full-time operator is unable for a period of two continuous months to perform their regular duties, qualified part-time operators shall be asked, in order of seniority, if they wish to temporarily fill the aforementioned vacancy. Said employee shall fill said vacancy until the full-time employee returns to work, or until a time that it is decided that the full-time employee will not be returning to work.

Such part-time employee hired to fill such vacancy will be entitled to all rights of a new full-time employee under the contract.

If the full-time operator does not return to work, management will permanently fill the vacancy in accordance with Article 17.02(c). It is understood that in the event that the full-time employee returns to work, the part-time employee filling such vacancy will revert back to part-time status without benefits.

The date on which the employee took the permanent full-time position will be the date of department or bidding seniority. This date will also be the date of Company seniority, unless the part-time operator permanently taking the permanent position is the same employee that temporarily filled the position. In this case, the employee will be entitled to a Company seniority date consistent with the date the employee took the temporary position.

(e) The Employer may use full-time and part-time operators and mechanics from Centro of Cayuga and Centro of Oswego to supplement the work force at CNY Centro, Inc. after all employees at CNY Centro, Inc. have indicated their availability to work and have been used. Employees from Cayuga and Oswego used on CNY Centro, Inc. property will be paid the top rate of the position they are working in.

- (f) There will be no variance in tool allowance for Oswego, Cayuga, and Syracuse.
- (g) Employees required to travel from Auburn or Oswego to Syracuse for training will be paid one hour at their straight time rate for travel allowance.
- (h) For operators in Oswego and Auburn, if no replacement can be secured to cover the piece of work on time, then a miss-out will be charged if call-in was not within sixty minutes of report time.
- (i) Full-time operators in Oswego and Auburn will sign for vacations in January of each year. The normal vacation allotment shall be one operator per week.
 - A second vacation opening may be made available for a given week based on mutual agreement between the Union and the Employer, provided the work to be vacated can be filled at the straight time rate.
- (j) A day off book shall be established for Centro of Cayuga Inc. and Centro of Oswego Inc., consistent with the provisions of article 13.12, but with the following exceptions:
 - 13.12(2)(a) one operator may be off on any given day. 13.12(2)(c) – change "twelve (12) o'clock midnight" to eight (8) am. 13.12(d) – does not apply
 - All additional requests will depend on availability of operators.
- (k) Call-a-Bus drivers in Oswego and Cayuga shall be paid from the time that they clock in until the time they clock out, with no more than an accumulative of two (2) hours of break time unpaid with no more than two (2) breaks per day.
- 17.03 If retirees vacate their tripper(s) by taking a leave of absence longer than 30 calendar days they shall be deemed to have given up their work for that sign-up. Retiree may not sign-up if their leave of absence goes beyond the start of a new sign-up and can only select available work when they return. Retirees who sign for work must be available to work on the first day of the sign-up.

Special Provisions for Extra Operators

NOTE: When extra operators are working regular runs daily, they are governed by provisions outlined in Article XXV (Part Time Operators) and Article XVII (Centro of Cayuga, Inc. & Centro of Oswego, Inc. Exceptions) of this contract.

17.04 Hours of Labor

(a) All extra operators will be guaranteed three (3) hours daily. If an extra operator works more than three (3) hours, the portion over three (3) hours will not count towards any other day's guarantee. It is understood, however, that extra operators to receive this minimum guarantee, shall report on time. Operators failing to so report shall forfeit their guarantee for that day. Extra operators held for show-up will be paid for all time held at their straight time rate except as stipulated in 17.05.

(b) No extra operator shall be compelled to work after a thirteen (13) hour spread unless the operator is working pieces of work and then shall not be compelled to work after twelve (12) hours spread unless the operator so desires.

17.05 Overtime - Extra List Operators:

- (a) Extra list operators will receive overtime on a weekly basis for any hours worked over forty (40).
- (b) Extra list operators break time will not be issued any earlier than four (4) hours from their initial report time, unless mutually agreed upon with Property Supervisor/Manager.

17.06 Extra List Operation:

- (a) The Employer agrees to maintain an extra list adequate to properly take care of the service. The weekday list will be made up of two (2) Part-Time Operators schedule to cover the morning reports and afternoon reports. The Saturday list will be one (1) Part-Timer; Sunday Extra list will be assigned through rotation, if needed by the Property Supervisor/Manager. The report times for all days will be assigned by the Property Supervisor/Manager.
- (b) The extra list will be closed at 11:00 am the day the schedule is posted for the following week. It is understood there can be no changes made to the extra list after 10:00 pm that day, unless it becomes necessary due to an operator not having the required eight hours off as outlined in 13.11(c) or agreed up on with the Property Supervisor/Manager.
- (c) If the outside spread time factor should go over the prescribed spread of the first show-up operator, the operator shall be required to accept said run and will work until they can be replaced by another operator then to be put on hold. It is understood said operator shall have at least thirty (30) minutes off for lunch, will not lose their guarantee for the day.
- (d) Show-up: When an operator reports for work, the operator shall be expected to perform the work assigned and remain on duty until released by the service supervisor, in accordance with the provisions of this agreement.
- (e) An operator on a show-up who is available for work at the time a run is due to be out and is given said run late (past the reports) shall be paid for the run pay.
- (f) An operator working a tripper, etc. or on show-up and performs work shall not be excluded from working a run, provided it is not scheduled over the thirteen (13) hour spread and said operator is in sequence to be given the run.
- (g) Regular operators serving time at the foot of the extra list shall receive the minimum guarantee. The service supervisor will not assign work to other employees at time and one-half when they have been notified that an employee is or will be serving time on the foot of the extra list and available for work.

- (h) Extra List Operators will cover work that becomes open that day (i.e. sick call, FMLA, Miss-outs, no shows, etc.). Any scheduled time off will be covered when the schedule is written (i.e. Floaters, book-off, etc.).
- (i) If more than one piece of work/run becomes open the same day and overlaps, the Extra List Operator will cover the work that has the earliest report. The second piece of work/run will be filled on an emergency basis. If the work assigned to Extra List Operator ends prior to the Second piece of work/run; the Extra List Operator will complete that work, if this exceeds the 12-hour spread time the Extra List Operator can elect to stay past the spread time.

17.07 Call-A-Bus Vacation Pay

Vacation pay for Full Time Call-A-Bus work (runs) will pay 45 hours per week based upon the run being on a flex time schedule. If at some point a Call-A-Bus run is changed to a dedicated start and finish time, the vacation pay will mirror the run pay.

In order to receive this pay, the employee would have to be currently working a Call-A-Bus run when they take their vacation.

17.08 Operators will be paid run pay at their own hourly rate of pay for the entire day. Part time operators will receive spread pay while performing a full run.

ARTICLE XVIII

LEAVES OF ABSENCE

18.01

(a) Leaves for Committee Members:

The members of committees of the Union shall have leave of absence when Union business requires it providing reasonable notice is given by 11:00 am of the day previous to the absence if possible.

- (b) Other Leaves of Absence:
 - (1) The Employer agrees to permit employees to be absent for not more than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days in any year providing that manpower will permit such leave of absence, without interfering with their position of seniority. Employees shall have the right to ask for an extension of such leave of absence either by letter or in person. Such extension shall be requested at least five (5) days prior to the expiration of the first leave of absence.

The Union will be notified of all leaves of absence granted. Application for leave must be made prior to the time leave is to begin.

(2) Employees who are granted leave of absence shall not be called back into service until such leave of absence has expired. If mutually agreed upon, employees may report for work at an earlier period than that for which a leave of absence was asked. They shall take their own runs at the beginning of the next work week.

18.02 Leave for Jury Duty:

- (a) Regular operators absent because of jury duty will be compensated for the difference between jury duty pay and the pay for their regular run. Extra operators absent because of jury duty will be compensated for the difference between jury duty and eight (8) hours straight time pay. Mechanical Department and Building Maintenance employees absent because of jury duty will be compensated for the difference between jury duty pay and their regular day's pay. Proof of such jury duty is to be made by presenting a jury duty affidavit to the superintendent's office.
- (b) Runs of regular operators serving on jury duty will be left open for the regular operator who should advise the station supervisor as soon as possible of their availability.

18.03 Leave for Military Service:

- (a) Under Section 242 of the Military Law of the State of New York, an employee, upon furnishing proper documentation shall be paid their salary or other compensation for any and all periods of absence while engaged in the performance of ordered military duty, not to exceed thirty (30) days in a calendar year. In the event that an employee's normal work schedule includes Saturday and/or Sunday, and the employee has ordered military duty on those days, up to four (4) additional days of salary or other compensation shall be paid for said ordered military duty.
- (b) Effective January1, 2018, and bargaining unit employee who served in any branch of the military and can provide a DD-214 proving service time and an honorable discharge, will be eligible to receive one (1) additional floating holiday per year.

This floating holiday will be in addition to the allotted number of floating holidays allowed in the Collective Bargaining Agreement 10.01(b) and will follow the same rules for use and payment as stated in the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

18.04 Funeral Leave:

- (a) In the event of death in employee's immediate family, (i.e.: mother, father, stepmother, stepfather, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister, brother, wife, husband, daughter, son or grandchild of the employee) such employee will be allowed three (3) day's leave with pay.
- (b) Two (2) day's leave with pay will be allowed in the event of the death of an employee's grandparent.

18.05 Sick Leave:

- (a) Paid Sick Leave Benefits
 - (1) Effective November 1, 2024, an employee will be entitled to paid sick days November 1st of each year (November 1st October 31st). Sick time is earned based on the employee's active service:

1 year - 5 years: 4 sick days per year 5 years – 12 years: 6 sick days per year 7 sick days per year

Sick time will be paid to employees on the basis of eight (8) hours of pay.

The employees can request payment of these sick days at any time throughout the year (November 1st – October 31st). No partial payments will be made except in the case where an employee has used a full day or days for a paid book-off during the year, those days will be considered accumulative.

- (2) An employee will have the option each year to accumulate the aforementioned sick days. Accumulated sick days shall be paid on the first day off because of sickness and shall be paid on the basis of eight (8) hours of pay.
- (3) All employees hired within the year (November 1st October 31st) will accrue credits for pre-paid or accumulative sick days on the basis of one-half (1/2) day per month, up to the limit of four (4) sick days per year, for the remainder of that time.

At the start of the next year (November 1st – October 31st) after the initial employment date, the employee will be entitled to four (4) sick days in accordance with either 18.05(a)(1) or (3) of our agreement.

The payment of the pro-rated sick days will be based on the pay scale in effect for the employee on the date the pay is requested.

- (4) Prepaid sick day payments will be made on a separate check.
- (5) If an employee retires or becomes deceased, or resigns with proper notices, and has not collected the sick days set forth in this provision, the Employer agrees to pay the employee, or the employee's estate, the sick pay the employee is entitled to.
- (6) If an employee is discharged, the employee will waive their rights to this benefit.
- (7) An employee will not be eligible to collect prepaid sick leave benefits while the employee is collecting Workmen's Compensation benefits. The employee will, however, continue to accumulate these benefits. The employee will be eligible to collect the sick leave benefits as pre-paid or accumulated benefits when the employee returns to work. If the employee does not return to work, the sick leave benefits will be paid upon the employee's separation or termination.

(b) Reporting Sick, Etc.:

All employees who are reported sick or granted leave of absence shall not be required to report in full uniform but shall be permitted to report in person, by messenger, or by telephone, through the dispatcher or official in charge that they will be on duty the next day and shall not be required to do any work on the day on which they report. Such report shall be made before 11:00 am.

(c) An employee who reports sick three times during a period of twenty (20) working days may be required by the Employee Relations Supervisor, Lead Supervisor, Operations Manager, Assistant Fleet Manager, Fleet Manager, Manager of Cayuga, Manager of

- Oswego, Director of Internal Operations/Support Programs, or the Director of Field Operations/Subsidiaries to furnish a physician's note as proof of illness.
- (d) An employee who returns to work after a period of sickness or disability will be restored to their former position according to department seniority at such time as the employee is physically qualified by the Employer's physician.
- (e) If any dispute arises as to the decision of the Employer physician as set forth in paragraph (d) above, either party may, within fifteen (15) calendar days of the receipt of the Employer physician's determination, request in writing that the following procedure commence:
 - (1) The Employer will submit to the party of the second part a panel of five (5) physicians who are qualified as specialists in the employee's condition.
 - (2) The party of the second part will select one (1) physician from this panel who shall make an examination of the employee and report thereon. It being understood and agreed that said physician should receive, prior to making the examination of the employee, a description of the duties expected to be performed by said employee in the usual course of their employment, said description of duties to be approved by both of the parties.
 - (3) A written copy of the examining physician's report as to the employee's physical condition, together with an outline of recommended work limits, will be furnished to both the Union and the Employer. The recommended work limits, will be furnished to both the Union and the Employer. The Employer will not be required to provide employment as recommended by the examining physician, unless such work is available in the normal operations of the Employer.
 - (4) Fifty percent (50%) of the cost of such examination shall be borne by each of the parties.
 - (5) The decision of the examining physician, as to the employability of the employee, will be final and binding on the parties hereto.
- (f) Mechanical Department employees who are assigned to a lesser position than their former position, after a period of sickness or disability, will be restored to their former position at such time as they are physically qualified by the Employer physician. Provided that an employee must apply to their former position within a period of ninety (90) days following the physical qualification.
- (g) Any employee, who is displaced, as a result of the procedure in paragraph (f) above, will be entitled to bump down in the regular manner according to General Mechanical Department seniority.
- (h) Physical Examination

 Management reserves the right to require an employee on duty to submit to a physical examination or other certified test or tests to determine if the employee is impaired through the use of alcohol and/or drugs.

18.06 Maternity Leave:

Maternity leave will carry the same pay, fringe benefits and employment status, for the period of actual disability, as leave for Non-Occupational Disabilities. Any policy, rule, regulation, or contractual provision inconsistent with this statement is to be deemed amended to incorporate this statement.

18.07 Ministers of God

The Employer will make every reasonable effort to allow employees who are Ministers of God the necessary time off to perform their Ministerial duties, provided their work can be covered at the straight-time rate.

18.08 Medical Furlough Schedule

A medical furlough will be available to active full-time employees, according to the following schedule of years of active service:

Up to 2 years: 6 months Over 2 years: 15 months

Medical Benefits will continue for the length of each furlough. The Company may not cancel the medical furlough provided the employee complies with the provisions in the Policy on Attendance and all other contractual requirements.

Medical furloughs for the same injury or condition shall be added together and treated as cumulative, subject to the above limits.

This applies to all new medical leaves beginning after the signing of the contract, April 29, 2024.

For a full description of the Medical Furlough Benefit, please refer to your Policy on Attendance.

18.09 FMLA Leave

Employees who are out of work for reasons approved and qualified for under the FMLA are required to use any available un-paid/paid time off listed below(regardless of the reason for taking the time off) and such time may be taken in any order, but the employee is required to notify the Company which type of time off they are using for each FMLA day taken.

- 1. Book Off Days
- 2. Sick Time
- 3. Floating Holidays

Maintenance Employees will be charged for Sick time and floating holidays.

When using partial FMLA time, employees will be required to return to work within their work time for that day, however they will not be guaranteed eight (8) hours of pay if their remaining work time does not allow for it.

18.10 Emergency Service Providers

(a) Employees who are members of a volunteer fire department and/or ambulance squadron shall be eligible for excused tardiness attributable to the provision of emergency services in a volunteer fire department and/or ambulance squadron without being charged an absence or missout upon prior certification by Centro Management. Certification of employees shall be at the discretion of Centro Management upon submission of proper written documentation establishing the current and continuing membership of the employee in a volunteer fire department and/or ambulance squadron.

(b) Absence or Tardiness

In the event a certified employee is absent from work or reports for work beyond their scheduled reporting time due to the provision of emergency service, the employee will report such absence or tardiness as soon as possible to their respective department. The employee shall submit an official written statement from the officer in charge of the fire department and/or ambulance squadron stating the employee's name, time of alarm, time of release and a description of the emergency verifying the absence or tardiness. Upon approval of the written statement by Centro Management, the employee will not be charged with an absence or missout.

ARTICLE XIX

COMPANY PASSES

- 19.01 The Employer agrees to furnish free transportation in the form of card passes to employees and their spouses on all lines owned, leased, or operated by the Employer. A pass will also be furnished to a pensioner and their spouse during their lifetime.
- 19.02 Widows or widowers of employees who become deceased while active employees shall be given a pass for free transportation on all lines operated by the Employer.
- 19.03 Employees riding on free transportation shall not occupy seats to the exclusion of revenue passengers.

ARTICLE XX

EMPLOYEE TRANSFER

An employee will be allowed to transfer from one department into another department (i.e.: Mechanical to Operations or visa-versa) if mutually agreed upon between the Employer and the Union. All seniority for reason of Employer benefits shall continue without a break, however, seniority rights for bidding purposes shall be frozen on the date transfer is finalized. In the event that an employee returns to the department the employee transferred out of, all seniority rights up to the date frozen shall be restored. If an employee is transferred from one department to another due to a medically related problem, and thereafter returns to their former position, the employee will suffer no loss of Company and/or Union seniority. It is understood that this paragraph becomes effective July 23, 1986.

ARTICLE XXI

UNION OFFICIALS ON EMPLOYER PROPERTY

Bona fide officers of the Union in the performance of their duties on Employer property shall be governed by the same rules and regulations applicable to Employer employees.

ARTICLE XXII

BULLETINS

The Employer and the Union agree to provide each other a copy of all bulletins posted on bulletin board as soon as practicable.

ARTICLE XXIII

REDUCING FORCE (LAY-OFF)

When it is necessary to reduce the force, two (2) week's notice will be given, and preference for reemployment will be given employees laid off before any new employees are hired, according to their class of work, if they are qualified.

ARTICLE XXIV

AGENCY SHOP PROVISIONS

24.01 Non-Member Employees

Employees who are not members of the Union shall be recognized as Non-Member Employees. The Union will have the sole discretion in determining the level of representation for Non-Member Employees in regard to discipline and discipline grievances, including during questioning by the employer and at any stage in the grievance and arbitration process. In cases where the union is not providing representation in arbitration, Non-Member Employees may be represented by their own advocate in discipline arbitrations at their own expense.

ARTICLE XXV

PART-TIME OPERATORS

- 25.01 The following provision governs the use of part-time operators for CNY Centro, Inc.
 - (1) Refer to section 13.14 under work force reduction.

- (2) All full-time operators who are discharged for just cause by the Employer will be replaced with a full-time operator within a period of four months from the date of final termination, before any additional part-time operators are hired.
- (3) The Employer will not change, eliminate, or alter runs and/or combinations to give part-time operators additional work.
- (4) If pieces of work are available on a daily basis that are seven (7) hours or more, said pieces will, depending upon the circumstances
 - a. be made into a 5-day run
 - b. be put into a combination
 - c. be worked off of the extra list.
- (5) All show-ups will be worked by full-time operators, except as in section 9.04.
- (6) All vacation reliefs and runs open because of absences of full-time operators will be worked by full-time operators. However, part-time operators will be eligible to operate parts of a run or miscellaneous duties after all extra-list operators and regular operators available to work have been used.
- (7) Work assignments for part-time operators will not interfere with the operation of the extra list, except as in section 9.04.
- (8) No more part-time operators than an amount equal to 15% of the number of full-time operators can be used at any one time. Maintenance Department personnel and pensioners are not included in this figure of 15%. It is understood that the above figure does not limit the number of part-time operators that can be used for special events after all full-time operators available have been used in accordance with Sections 10 and 11.
- (9) Part-time operators will be limited to working a maximum of thirty (30) hours per week. The above limit is not applicable to part-time operators that can be used for special events after all full-time operators available have been used in accordance with Sections 10 and 11.
- (10) Full-time operators, members of the Maintenance Department, pensioners will be given priority for charter work which is performed at straight time.
- (11) Full-time operators, Maintenance Department employees, and pensioners will be given priority to sign up for Carrier Dome work on the Manley and Skytop routes. Any additional Carrier Dome work may be given to part-time employees.
- (12) Part-time employees will be eligible to operate trippers and non-scheduled work which is not part of a run.
- (13) Part-time operators shall be subject to the same rules and regulations as fulltime employees, plus specialized rules and regulations for part-time employees.
- (14) The probationary period for part-time operators shall be 1,040 hours worked.

- (15) The following sections of this agreement will be applicable to part-time operators:
 - a. Article 1.03, 1.04, 1.05, 1.06
 - b. Article II
 - c. Article III
 - d. Non-discrimination Clause
 - e. 13.06(a)
 - f. 13.13 on a pro-rated basis
 - g. 19.01, 19.03 employee only
 - h. Article XXVI
 - i. Article XXVII
- (16) Part-time operators will not be eligible for any guarantees, penalty pay provisions, spread time, paid leave, or other fringe benefits applicable to fulltime employees. In accordance with the requirements of law, part-time employees shall be covered by the provisions of the Social Security Act and Workman's Compensation.
- (17) Part-time operators will not accrue full-time seniority while so employed. A part-time employee who applies and is accepted for full-time employment shall, for all purposes, accrue seniority only from the date of hire as a full-time employee except as per Article XXX.
- (18) Part-time operators who apply for full-time bus operator's vacancies shall be given preference for such employment, if qualified, on the basis of their part-time seniority.
- (19) A separate seniority list for part-time operators will be made available to the Union monthly.
- (20) A list showing the number of hours worked by part-time operators will be made available to the Union on a weekly basis.
- (21) Part-time operators will be paid the same hourly wage rate as full-time employees, subject to the progressive hiring schedule. For the purposes of applying the progressive hiring schedule, every 1020 hours worked shall be counted as six (6) months.
- (22) When scheduled to work, part-time operators will be guaranteed a minimum of two (2) hours per day at their respective hourly rate and will be paid for all time which they are required by the Employer to perform any duties.
- (23) The Employer will have the option to put, or not to put, a tripper up for bid for full-time operators except as per Article XIII 13.01(m). At the beginning of each sign-up a list of all work not listed on the tripper sheets part-time operators sign will be made available to the Union.
- (24) During the period(s) when school is open the Company will be allowed to use an additional ten (10) part-time operators above the 15% limit (exclusively on school trippers). Post list and make available to a designated Union official daily list of trippers and school tripper part-time operators are working.

- (25) Maintenance Department employees, retirees, and employees whose pension is vested when they leave the full-time employ of the Company who drive as part-time bus operators will be allowed to retain their original seniority date for the purpose of bidding on work.
- (26) Layoff Mechanical Department Part-Time Operator
 - a. In the event of a layoff in the Mechanical Department, when no employee requests a voluntary layoff, the Mechanical Department employees laid off will be given the preference for the first part-time and /or full-time opening as a bus operator, if qualified and provided no full-time bus operators are currently laid off.
 - b. It is understood that if the position is part-time, every effort will be made to give the employee forty (40) hours per week.
 - A Mechanical Department employee working part-time will be allowed to retain their original seniority date for the purpose of bidding on work.
 - d. A Mechanical Department employee working full-time will, for the purpose of bidding rights, accrue seniority from the date the employee starts working as a full-time operator.
- (27) The Company may assign part-time operators to cover extra list work on Sundays. Such assignment(s) will not count toward the maximum working hours limitations set forth in Section 25.01 (8) and (9), and shall not be restricted by Sections 25.01 (5), (6), and (7) of this Article. The Employer agrees that such assignment(s) will not cause a reduction in force of any full-time operator(s)
- (28) Special Provision for (non-retiree) part-time operators:
 - The following book-off schedule shall be in effect for part-time operators who have <u>signed on</u> trippers Monday through Friday:

Signed –On		Book-off Days (per sign-up)	
Trippers	/ Hours	Full	/ Partial
5 minimum	or 10 hrs.	1	2
5 minimum	or 10-20 hrs.	2	4
5 minimum	or over 20 hrs.	3	6

- Partial book-off days will only be allowed for part-time operators who work two or more trippers during the course of a day.
- A maximum of two part-time operators shall book-off each AM and PM.
- b. If a part-time operator has not signed on at least five trippers or ten (10) hours (Monday - Friday), they will not be given additional work at the window.

- c. Part-time operators must sign on ten (10) hours or five (5) trippers (Monday Friday) or they will not be eligible to work Sundays.
- d. Part-time operators shall be governed by the same absentee policy as full-time employees except that the number of absences allowed shall be one-half the full-time formula. Upon signing of this agreement, part-time absentee records shall be set back to zero.
- e. Unpaid leave: Part-time operators who work between 500 and 1,000 hours in the prior calendar year shall receive one week of unpaid leave. Part-time operators who work over 1,000 hours shall receive two weeks of unpaid leave.
- f. Part-time operators who are unable to sign on five trippers or ten hours minimum because there is not available part-time work, shall be given the first opportunity to sign on available part-time work that becomes open on a casual basis.
- g. If a tripper becomes open which pays two (2) hours or more, it shall be put up for bid and filled by seniority. The tripper that subsequently becomes open, it there is one, shall be filled on a first-come first-served basis.
- h. Book-off procedures for part-time shall be the same as the full-time procedure.

i. Medical Furlough

A medical furlough will be available to active part-time employees who are out due to medical reasons. The employee will be entitled to a medical furlough according to the following schedule of years of active service:

0 to 5 years of service: 6 months Over 5 years of service: 1 year

Medical furloughs for the same injury or condition shall be added together and treated as cumulative, subject to the above time limits. Once the part-time employee has reached the end of their furlough, they will be subject to termination.

j. Uniforms

New hires will receive 5 shirts and 5 pants, 1 coat and 1 hat or cap at time of hire. January 1st of each year the company will provide a \$150.00 uniform credit for part time operators to purchase required uniforms. If the employee exceeds \$150.00 uniform credit, the employee is responsible for the overage at the time of purchase. Uniform allowances will be reset every January 1st. If a part time employee is hired after January 1, 2024, the yearly uniform allowance will be pro-rated from date of hire.

ARTICLE XXVI

EMPLOYEE CONDUCT

26.01 (a) Compliance with Safety Rules:

The Company recognizes that compliance with safety rules and regulations is of the utmost importance. To be effective, all employees must be constantly on the lookout for any condition or action which might be unsafe or careless. Both the Union and the Employer agree to promote all rules necessary to insure safety.

- (1) The Union will cooperate with the Employer in encouraging employees to observe all safety regulations issued by the Employer and to work in a safe manner.
- (2) The Union agrees that the employees shall comply with all reasonable safety rules and regulations when they are made known, and it is the duty of both the Union and the Employer to see that they are enforced.

(b) Clean Work Area:

The Union will cooperate with the Employer in maintaining safe working conditions and improving the cleanliness of all department, machinery, equipment, and facilities used by the employees so that the safety of all workers may be assured.

(c) Defacing Employer Property or Changing Employer Notices is Prohibited:

Any employee who willfully damages or defaces Employer property or adds to or writes over any general notice or bulletin, or posts unofficial bulletins or any notices that are offensive, shall be dealt with severely.

ARTICLE XXVII

PROBATIONARY PERIOD

All employees hired will be on a six (6) month probationary period (from the date they are "turned in" as a regular operator in the Transportation Department or from the date they are hired in the Mechanical Department).

If a part time employee has been in the employment of the company for more than 3 years, the 6-month probationary period will not apply when promoted to full time status.

A probationary employee may be discharged or disciplined at any time within this probationary period and shall not be subject to the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE XXVIII

GOOD WILL

In consideration of the above, the Union agrees that its members shall perform their labor in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Employer and use their influence and best endeavor to promote and advance to a successful end, the welfare and prosperity of the Employer.

ARTICLE XXIX

TERMINATING CLAUSE

- 29.01 The foregoing amendments to the former contracts dated the last day of October 1998 will remain in full force and effect except as to the amendments contained in this document. The entire contract, as amended, between the Union and the Employer shall remain in force and be binding on the parties hereto through the last day of October 2002.
- 29.02 After October 31, 2002, this contract shall remain in force from year-to-year unless either party hereto desires a cancellation or changes in its terms and conditions in which case the party desiring such cancellation or change shall notify or submit to the other party in writing, the desired cancellation or changes by September 20, 2002, or September 20 of each succeeding year.
- 29.03 If any provisions which were in this agreement expiring October 31, 1998 and were not negotiated out, or if any provisions negotiated in the present agreement are omitted, it is understood that any and all such omissions shall be included in the final draft of any new agreement

ARTICLE XXX

TEMPORARY FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES

- 30.01 Part-time bus operators at the Syracuse facility may be moved temporarily into full-time operator positions under the following conditions:
 - (a) Temporary full-time employees will only be utilized to replace full-time operators who are on long-term compensation or disability, and only when the long-term sick list exceeds seventeen (17) full-time operators. This temporary replacement will be done on a one-for-one basis.
 - (1) Long-term disability shall mean that a full-time operator must be unable to perform their duties for a period of two (2) continuous months. If medical notice is given by the employee that the employee is unable to work for two continuous months, then a temporary full-time operator may be used immediately, subject to (a) above.
 - (b) Movement from the status of part-time operator to temporary full-time status will be voluntary.

- (c) The Union will determine movement to temporary full-time status, which will be seniority based. Movement will take place under the following conditions:
 - The Company must give the Union a one week advance notice.
 - Part-time operators who are on disciplinary probation will not be eligible for temporary full-time positions. However, once a part-time operator completes their disciplinary probation, the operator may bump the lowest senior temporary full-time operator, effective on the first Monday following the operator's completion of the disciplinary probation period.
 - If a part-time operator is asked if they wish to accept a temporary full-time position, and subsequently refuses that position, the operator must wait until the next temporary full time position.
 - When a temporary full-time position becomes available, any previous temporary full-time seniority accrued by part-time operators will have no bearing on determining which part-time operator will fill the available temporary full-time position.
- (d) Upon being moved to temporary full-time status, operators will receive the following benefits for the duration of being temporary full-time operators:
 - Full-time employee health benefits.
 - Accrual of credit toward vacation time.
 - Accrual of credit toward pension benefits.
 - Floating holidays on the basis of one floating holiday for every three months worked as a temporary full-time operator.
 - Accrual of Company seniority to be applied to their Company seniority once they become permanent full-time operators.
 - For purposes of wage progression during temporary full-time status, the employee's prior work time as a part-time operator will be converted to months.
- (e) During periods when operators are in temporary full-time status, the following conditions apply:
 - Bidding seniority for operators during their term in temporary full-time status will be based on their part-time bidding seniority.
 - On the date that a temporary full-time operator becomes permanently full-time, then the operator will begin to accrue full-time bidding seniority.
 - When a regular full-time operator returns to duty and there is more than one temporary full-time operator being used, the temporary full-time operator with the least time served as a temporary full-time operator will revert back to parttime status with their original part-time seniority.
 - When one or more operators are in temporary full-time status and a regular full-time operator leaves the service of the Company for any reason, the fulltime operator must be replaced within thirty (30) days of separation or all temporary full-time operators will revert back to part-time status.
 - For any extra work which is bid separately, temporary full-time operators will follow the bidding procedures of part-time operators.
 - For tripper sign-up, temporary full-time operators will sign as part-time operators during sign-up periods.

- (f) In the event of a service reduction, the following conditions apply:
 - No full-time operators will be laid off while temporary full-time operators are working.
 - The Company does not have to replace full-time employees who have voluntarily separated from the Company by resignation, retirement, or voluntary lay-off. The Company may utilize temporary full-time employees during and after the service reduction in compliance with the rest of this section.
 - Operators who have been moved up to permanent full-time positions may, for a period of up to four (4) months, be moved back to part-time status.
- (g) It is understood and agreed by both parties that any provisions not mentioned in this section which are applicable to full-time operators are also applicable to temporary full-time operators. The exception to this is Article XVII.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Re: Group Health Care Cost Containment

During the course of bargaining for a new Agreement effective November 1, 1988 through October 31, 1991, the parties agreed that health care cost containment measures would be implemented, effective January 1, 1989. It was also agreed that the wage deduction for employee contribution to the Group Health Care Plan would cease, effective January 1, 1989.

The Union conditioned its Agreement to the cost containment provision on the Company's response to specific questions present, benefit enhancements, and on a specific declaration of Mandatory Hospital Pre-Certification, Pre-Admission Testing, and Mandatory Second Surgical Opinion.

It is hereby agreed that the "questions and answers", benefit enhancements, and cost containment procedures noted above were resolved as follows:

COST CONTAINMENT

1. Mandatory Hospital Pre-Certification

- (a) The Plan requires that the Plan Administrator be notified regarding all nonemergency hospital admissions. A non-emergency hospital admission is any planned or elective hospital admission. This requirement does not apply to emergency admissions or maternity admission.
- (b) Once your physician advises you of a hospital admission plan, you are required to make a phone call to the Plan Administrator. The Plan Administrator will advise you or your physician of the usual hospital stay for your particular treatment. Any extension of hospital confinement must be discussed with the Plan Administrator. The Plan Administrator may contact your physician's office prior to the anticipated date of discharge, regarding your progress and the need for any additional days.

- (c) Failure to pre-certify your hospital stay with the Plan Administrator will result in a \$300 penalty applied towards your inpatient hospital expenses. The amount you are required to pay as a result of a penalty will not count toward the stop-loss amount.
- (d) Should an employee or covered dependent not comply with pre-certification procedures for non-willful, mitigating circumstances beyond their control, they will be afforded a one time forgiveness of the normal penalty.

2. Pre-Admission Testing

If you have your lab test performed as an out-patient, before you are admitted to the hospital for surgery, the Plan will pay 10% of the laboratory costs. The preadmission tests must be performed no earlier than 10 days before you are admitted.

3. Second Surgical Opinion

- (a) Second Surgical Opinion Program provides that before certain elective surgical procedures, you or your dependent may be required to seek a second opinion before any surgery is performed. Once you have obtained the second opinion, and even a third opinion in some cases, it is your decision whether or not to go ahead with surgery. Plan benefits will be paid at the normal level.
 - (1) However, if you do not obtain the second opinion if required by the Plan Administrator and have the surgery performed, a \$250 penalty will be applied toward the surgical expenses.
- (b) The Plan will pay 100% of the cost of a second opinion anytime the P.A. requires one when your surgeon recommends elective surgery. If the second opinion does not agree with the first opinion, you may choose to get a third opinion to confirm the need for surgery. The Plan will pay 100% of the cost of the third opinion.
- (c) A second surgical opinion is not mandatory for emergency surgery.
- (d) The physician rendering the second opinion must be a specialist in the field and may not be practicing within the same group as the physician who originally recommended the surgery.

BENEFIT ENHANCEMENTS

Reimbursement for Emergency Accident and Illness

The comprehensive Group Health Plan will provide reimbursement at the usual, reasonable and customary level for up to \$200 for the treatment of emergency accidents. This reimbursement will apply only if the treatment is secured in a physician's office, ambulatory surgical center, or in a private physician's office which is staffed by acute care specialists. Such offices and centers must be established to treat and care for emergencies, or urgent medical problems.

Physical Therapy

A physical therapy benefit will be paid when performed on outpatient by a licensed physical therapist.

ADMINISTRATION PROCEDURES

Recognizing there has been negotiated changes in <u>GROUP TERM LIFE INSURANCE</u>, <u>GROUP HEALTH BENEFITS</u> and <u>PENSION</u>, the Company will conduct a comprehensive educational program on all employee benefits. The program will include, but is not limited to the following:

- 1. Written notification to all members of the Collective Bargaining Unit of all changes in employee benefits.
- 2. Posted notification of the Health Care Cost Containment measures.
- 3. Quarterly reminders to all members of the Collective Bargaining Unit of Health Care Cost Containment measures.
- 4. Educational information regarding the new Medicare Law.
- 5. Notification to the Union of pension exit interviews.
- 6. Availability of the Department of Human Resources management to discuss new plan revision individually or collectively.





SIGNATURE PAGE OF CONTRACTUAL AGREEMENT

DATE:		
CNY C	CENTRO, INC.	
CENT	RO OF CAYUGA, INC.	
CENT	RO OF OSWEGO, INC.	
BY:		
	Chris Tuff Deputy Chief Executive Officer	
BY:	Jackie Musengo Vice President of Human Resources	
DIVISI	ON 580 OF THE	
AMALGAMATED TRANSIT UNION		
BY:	Frank Saya Business Agent	
BY:	Mike Woodall President	

INDEX

Agency Shop Provisions	80
Carrier Dome Work	15
Company Bus Pass	79
Contractual Terminating Clause	86
Contratual Agreement	
Signature Page	91
Dental Insurance	29
Departmental Employee Transfer	79
Disability Insurance	25
Employee Charge	
Accident Appeals Committee	11
Bus Operator Cell Phone Policy	13
Definition of a Charge	9
Discipline	11
Hearings Between Employee/Employer/Union	10
Summons of an Employee to Answer a Charge	9
Suspension/Removal From Service	10
Employee Conduct	
Clean Work Area	85
Defacing Employer Property	85
Safety Compliance	85
Employee Records	
Employee File	16
Notification to Employee and Union	16
Flexible Spending Plan	31
Good Will Clause	86
Grievance	
Definitions	6
Purpose	6
Submission	6
Withdrawal	8
Group Term Life Insurance	25
Health Insurance	25
Alternative Health Plans	27
Co-Pay, Deductible, Co-Insurance, Max Benefit	26
Cost Containment	27, 88
Employee Premium Cost	27
Prescription Drugs	27
Survivor Benefit	28
Human Resources Management Department	16
Leaves of Absence	
Committee Members	74
Emergency Service Provider	79
FMLA	78
Funeral	75
Jury Duty	75
Maternity	78
Medical Furlough Schedule	78
Military Service	75
Ministers of God	78
Part Time Operator Medical Furlough	84
Sick Leave	75
Maintenance Department	

Hours of Labor	57
Locker Rooms	68
Mechanic Certification Premiums	60
Mechanic Premium Pay	59, 69
Mechanic Tool Allowance	67
Overtime	61
Promotions, Transfers, and Reduction in Work Force	62
Shifts and Towing Procedures	68
Uniform Allowance	67
Officials for Employer and Union	14
Operations Department	
Cayuga and Oswego Extra List Operations	72
Cayuga and Oswego Operations	70
Equipment Operation	44
Extra List Hours of Labor	54
Extra List Operator Overtime	55
Extra List Procedures	55
Operator Accident and Incident Reports	45
Operator Bids and Hold Downs	41
Operator Day Off Book	47
Operator Day Off Work	43
Operator Journey Time	45
Operator Miss-outs	46
Operator Overtime	43, 53
Operator Sign-Up	37
Operator Time Distribution	44
Operator Training and Instruction	45
Operator Uniforms	49
Operator Work Assignments	46
Operator Work Force Reduction	49
Part Time Operator Uniform	84
Part Time Operators	80
Syracuse University Work	53
Temporary Full Time Employees	86
Probationary Period	
Employee New Hires	85
Reduction of Work Force	
Notification	80
Retired Employee	
Health and Dental Coverage	29
Retirement Benefit	
Defined Benefit Pension Plan	32
Defined Benefit Plan Death Benefit	33
Defined Benefit Plan Disability Pension	33
Defined Benefit Plan Service Credit	33
Defined Contribution Plan	33
Union Communication	
Bulletins	80
Union Officials on Centro Property	80
Union Recognition	5
Vacation	
Maintenance Department	21
Operations Department	10

Service Eligibility	19
Vision Benefit	29
Wages	
Cayuga and Oswego	69
Cayuga and Oswego Longevity Premium Pay	70
Cayuga and Oswego Progression Scale	69
Operations Department	17
Operations Longevity Premium Pay	17, 59
Operator Night Premium	51
Operator Progression Rate	18
Overpayment/Underpayment	18
Pay Day	17